The Polish original should be referred to in matters of interpretation
Translation of auditors’ opinion originally issued in Polish

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ OPINION

To the Supervisory Board of Polish Energy Partners S.A.

1.

We have audited the attached consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2005 of Polish Energy Partners (the “Group™) with its registered office located in Warsaw,
at ul. Wiertnicza 169, containing:

» the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2005 with total assets amounting to 378,739
thousand zlotys,

o the consolidated profit and loss account for the period from 1 January 2005 to 31 December
2005 with a net profit amounting to 9,341 thousand ziotys,

e the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the period from
1 January 2005 to 31 December 2005 with a net increase in shareholders’ equity amounting to
10,497 thousand zlotys,

* the consolidated cash flow statement for the period from 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2005
with a net cash inflow amounting to 5,015 thousand zlotys and

» the additional notes and explanations.

The truth and fairness' of the attached consolidated financial statements and the proper
maintenance of the accounting records are the responsibility of the holding company’s
Management Board. Our responsibility was to audit the attached consolidated financial statements
and to express an opinion whether, based on our audit, these consolidated financial statements, in
all material respects, present truly and fairly” the financial position and financial results of the
Group.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the following
regulations being in force in Poland:

» chapter 7 of the Accounting Act dated 29 September 1994 (the “Accounting Act™),
+ the auditing standards issued by the National Chamber of Auditors,

in order to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free of material misstatement. In particular, the audit included examining, to a large extent on a
test basis, documentation supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The audit also included assessing the accounting principles adopted and used by the
Group and significant estimates made by the Management of the holding company, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe our audit has provided
a reasonable basis to express our opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole.

Translation of the following expression in Polish: “rzetelnosé, prawidlowosé i jasnoié”
Translation of the following expression in Polish: “rzefelne, prawidfowe i jasne”




'The Polish original should be referred to in matters of interpretation
Translation of auditors® opinion originally issued in Polish

4. The consolidated financial statements for the prior financial year ended 31 December 2004 were
subject to our audit and dated 24 February 2005 we issued on these consolidated financial
statements an unqualified opinion with emphasis of matter relating to the reversal of impairment
write-downs and release of provisions as a result of the improvement of financial situation of one
of key customers of the Company.

5. In our opinion, the attached consolidated financial statements, in all material respects:

e present truly and fairly all information material for the assessment of the results of the
Group’s operations for the pertod from | January 2005 10 31 December 2005, as well as its
financial position® as at 31 December 2005;

e have been prepared appropriately in all material aspects with the provisions of the
International Financial Reporting Standards, which were adopted by the EU;

o fulfiis all the law requirements which impact the form and content of the financial statements.

6. We have read the Directors® Report for the period from 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2005
discussing the Group activity and the principles of preparing vearly consolidated financial
statements (“Directors’ Report™} and conclude that the information derived from the attached
consolidated financial statements reconciles with the consolidated financial statements. The
information included in the Directors’ Report corresponds with the Regulation of Finance
Minister dated 19 October, 2005 in relation to current and periodical information submitted by the
issuers of securities (Journal of Laws no. 209 pos. 1744).

7. As at the date of the issuance of this opinion, the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December, 2004 have not been filed at the National Court Register and have not been
submitted for publication in Monitor Polski B, as required by the provisions of the Accounting
Act.

Marcin Zielitishi on behalf of
Certified Auditor Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z 0.0.,
No 10402/7665 Rondo ONZ 1 00-124 Warszawa

Ident. no. 130
Artur Zwak

Certified Auditor
No 9894/7366

Warsaw, 1 March 2006

* Translation of the following expression in Polish: “syfuacia majgthowa i finansowa”
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Polish Energy Pariners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Consolidated Balance Shest

(in thousand zlotys)

- CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ~Note 31.12.2005 ° 31.12.2004
Assets _

U LFixed Assets flong-term) T IY ATV 360
- 1.'T'angibleﬁxed assets - 2”1'3'.'14' B '55139% 338783
2. Intangible fixed assefs 12 - 27 - 38
3 Gociwii T . o
4 Financil assets R Rt et e 3204;
5. Financial assets valued at equity method . 1617 16 841
6. Long-term receivables 15 TUUyaMseT T 243651
- Defortod tax asscs - s
e Chehedases o = 5507
. Current assets {short-term) [ R N 7Y 71 57908
1,§nvehtc§y e .1986§ 1891‘
2.Trade receivables 9 17859 4381
e . _— 146 T
4 Oher shortterm receivables. e i . 732 i 619?
5.Acorued income and deferred cost 22 o 1194 2 778
b Olher s sty o 655 640
7 Shorterm financial assels e g i : -
" 8.Cash and cash equivalents B TR TR

Consolidated Balance Sheet should be analyzed together with the additional notes, which are the
integral part of the financial statement




Polish Energy Pariners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Consolidated Balance Sheet
{in thousand zlotys)

- CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET . Note : 31.12.2005  31.12.2004 -
Total Equity and Liabilities ' | |
- L Shareholders’ Equity : 11621 101124
2.Unpaid share capital : | (378} -
3.Surplus of sales issue above nominal value (agio) 83 36459
B e R T P
G R e o e e T I
B6.01her reserve capital 28 267 . 9392
7 Profitfloss from previous years ' 8 66'9': 12 755 ?

oMy _
11 Long-term liabilities i 27712 214748

1.Bank foans and credits 218 CUUstes T 21090

3.Provisions 26 2521 2499
e T e
H1. Short-term [iabilities 2 20406 24405
2 Trade liabilties W™ 30 2600

e ianites TS 14
4 Other labilties o ® 208 200
et S S E Pyt St 1644
6.Accruals and deferred income A 1358 163{}§
TotalEquity and Liabilities B e VT

Consclidated Balance Sheet should be analyzed together with the additional notes, which are the
integral part of the financial statement




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

{in thousand zlotys)

;CONSOLEDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT 031122005 31.12.2004 :

Continued activity

St e

1I. Cost of goods sold

Hi. Gross profit on sales {I-1])

W Seiingepess

V. General and administration costs

i Proﬁtonéaieé(ill;IV;V)“”“. O T TP

Vil. Other operating income

VIl Other operating expense

IX. Operating profit (VHVI-VIII

X. Financial income
Xl. Financial expense

Xil. Profiloss from associates

:xm.'P'réﬁi6&6:6't'éx"("lk%')'("-x'l'%l'-i(il)' S

Xiv. Corporate income tax

XV. Net profitfioss from continued activity

Discontinued activity

XVi. Profitfloss from discontinued activity

Wil. Nef profitoss

Distribution of profitiloss:

Parent company shareholders

oy sharbuiders
Netprofitloss
Wéig'ht'éd'é\ié'rage number of shares
éﬂés"i't:'é?su{'iﬁﬂ)m TR

;We'ighted average diluted number of shares

Diluted EPS fin2l)

M e

i
: 12902

38

a0 (12618
s
w0 3 184

B

9341

9341

9341

B 050422

18050615

49911
(31 966)

i)

6047
9688
{1 2)
14499
13 5'30f
(19 139)§
8841
2188
6653

6653

6 653
6653

6653
17932 392
037
17 932 382
0,37

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account should be analyzed together with the additional notes,

which are the integral part of the financial statement
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Changes in Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity
{in thousand zlotys)

Other Profitiloss
reserve uﬂﬁ_wmmm MMM © forthe : TOTAL
capital o ¥ period

Surplus of sales issue Reserve

H . . : . Share Unpaid share ) Treasury = capital from
: Changes in Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity captal  capita above __m__ﬁ_%_ value  shares option
m g ; valuation

a) increase

- net _HOE . - . . R - -
- shares issue . . . R . - - -
- shares issue above nominal value . . . ) . . . . .
-from distribution of profit (required by law) . . . . ) . . . .
- from distribution of v.amw .Ao.cm.ﬁ.ﬁ.:m. minimal .@.Em..aa:_.a.g ..S_ law) i} . . . . - - - -
-from distibution of profits from previous years . i . . . ) . . .
~ -from management opfions valuation ) . . . . ) . . .
Sdeeresse . ‘ , : - - : . .
- net loss - . - - - - - - -
- dividend payment . . _ R R ; . . .
- redemption of shares . . ) i ] . . . .
- coverage of loss . . ) . - . N . .
- movement to reserve capital i ) . . N . A . .

mnE_v. m.__.n_umgn_ozrmﬁmﬂoa- T R 5865 . w5450 X . : o 202 . o - o SA‘.

Changes in Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity should be analyzed together with the additional notes, which are the integral part of the financial statement



Polish Energy Partners Capital Group

Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
{(in thousand zlotys)

Consolidated Cash Flows Statement

| A. Cash flow from operating activities - indirect method
¢ L Gross profitfloss ' S
i Adjustments for:
1.Profit/ loss from associates
2.Depreciati0n
~ 3.Foreign exchange gains/losses
4 Interest and dividends received and péid
~ 5.Result on investment actlwty
6.Corporate i income tax
“"“T.Change in prowsmns
~ 8.Change in inventory

9.Change in receivables

10.Change in short {erm liabilities, without loans and credits

~ 11.Change in deferrals and accruals
12. Other changes - )
_ * 1fl.Net cash flow from nperatmg activities (I+/- il)
B Net cash flow from investing activities
L Inflows due to mvestmg activities
1. Sale of intangible and tangible fixed assets
2. Sale of investments in propesty and |ntang|bles
""" 3. Sale of other financial assets, mcludmg -
-sale of financial assets
- dividends and shares in profit
- repayment of granted Iong term loans
-interest '
- other inflows from financial assets
4 Other investment inflows
Il Outflows due to investing activities
"1, Purchase of intangible and tangibie fixed assets
2. Investments in property and intangibles '
3. Purchase of other financial assets, |nc!udmg
- purchase of financial assets

- Iong-term Ioans granted

4, Dividends and other paym'ér'ifs' paid to minority sharsholders,

5.0ther investing outflows

It.Net cash flow from investing activities (I-li)

31122005

e
(8672)
(1)
S
2310‘

(826)
362

PP
(758)
T

(14256)
(1398)

3o

.

248

87

118 | .

118

2213
46356
26420

o
115
2403§

17418
(23938)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement should be analyzed together with the additional notes, which

are the integral part of the financial statement

31.12.2004

8841

10 6235

49
2885
8643
o
12
i
811
%68
8600
R414)
(936)

6178,

19464

15163

15160
40 325
3013
o
918
2923
33471
(25 162)




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

{(in thousand zlotys)

Consolidated Cash Flows Statement ' 31122005 | 31.12.2004

C.Net cash flow from financing activities

l. Inflows from financing activities ' o 52 7'95 o 40389 ;
e ol S el G TR 1355
5 L omns and credis . . . e e 5_2 659 “ 3391
3 lsste of bonds R IR

4. Cther
Il Outflows due o financing activites N - | 25792 29448
U Brahass of ey shares SO S : _
2.Dividends and others payments to shareholders B 126 L
© 3.5hare issue related expenditure A |
Y e T e 15557 gaﬁs
5Repaymentsofbonds e et Lo L e e
6.Repayments of other financial liabilities _
7.Finance lease payments f . .”2.7.3 - 165
e g o » 1.65-‘
S other SR SO R

~ IiNetcash flow from financing activities () 27003 40941
. D. Net change in cash and cash equivalents {A.ll+/-B.1i+/-C 1} 6918 ' 5243

E. Balance sheet change in cash and cash equivalents, including: - " sm5 3285
- changes in cash and cash equivalents resuiing from foreign exchange gainsfiosses (5?2) 3 (1958)
F. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 15 533 3338

- - restricted cash and cash equivalents - | 6§05 6345

' Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents presented in the consolidated cash flow statement T
- with the balance sheet items 131422005 31.12.2004
7 Short-term financial assets in balance sheet 1319 R
8.Cash and cash equivalent in balance sheet 601  agss

. Cash of social fund | 29= - 17.'

Total O s299 3603

G. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period in the cash flow statement o 42 949 o 35603 |

Consclidated Cash Flow Statement should be analyzed together with the additional notes, which
are the integral part of the financial statement




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
{in thousand zlotys)

- Presentation of sources of external finance (cash flow statement) ' 31.12.2005 : 31.12.2004
“pos. C.1.2 Incomes from loans and credits ' R 65.9: 40389
épos. C.iL4 Py from oans and crerits S o (15.557.} L (18113)
. Change in sources of external finance, including: ' R ' 37102 22 271
;in\}ééthﬁéﬁ'f'd'ébi'd'réw; et DU 37 039 o 23 433
drawinglrepayment of VAT tadiiy, net TSSO 13 . (5 21?)
9

Consvlidated Cash Flow Statement should be analyzed together with the additional notes, which
are the integral part of the financial statement




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Additional Notes and Explanations

{in thousand zlotys)

1. General information

Polish Energy Partners S.A. (hereinafter referred to as a "Parent Company”) has been incorporated by
the Notarial Deed dated July 17, 1997. The Parent Company is registered with the National Court
Register held by the District Court for the city of Warsaw, XX Economic Department of the National
Court Register, Entry no. KRS 0000026545. The Company has been allocated a statistical number,
REGON 012693488, The seat of the Parent Company is at 169 Wiertnicza St. in Warsaw

The Company is the Parent Company of Polish Energy Partners Capital Group.
Pursuant to the National Court Register extract, the scope of the Parent Company’'s business activities
includes:

- Generation and distribution of electrical energy (PKD 40.10),

- Generation and distribution of heat (steam and hot water) (PKD 40.30),

- General building and land engineering {PKD 45.21},

- Construction of building installations (PKD 45.3},

- Other forms of granting loans except those activities to the performance of which the
concession or permission is needed or which are restricted for the scope of activities of
banks {(PKD 65.22),

- Research and development works in the area of biclogical and technical sciences
{PKD 73.10),

- Management and sale of properties at its own account (PKD 70.11),
- Contracted property management (PKD 70.32),
- Financial and accounting activities (PKD 74.12),
- Constructional, urban and technolegical design and architecture (PKD 74.20},
- Business and management consulting (PKD 74.14})
- Other commercial activities not classified anywhere else(PKD 74.84) ,
- Other educational activities not classified anywhere else (PKD 80.42),
- Wholesale of solid, liquid, gas fuels and related products (PKD 51.51).
The scope of business activities of subsidiaries is related to the activities of the Parent Company.

1.1 Period of operation of the Company and the entities comprising Capital Group

The Company's and other Group entities pericd of operation is unlimited except for Mercury Energia -
Przedsiebiorstwo Produkcyjno  Ustugowe i PoSrednictwa Comax Spotka z  ograniczong
odpowiedzialnoscia, Spotka Komandytowa.

Period of operation of one of the entities Mercury Energia - Przedsiebiorstwo Produkcyjno Ustugowe
i Posrednictwa Comax Spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia, Spotka komandytowa is limited till
the completion of the project “Construction and operation of energy plant which is fired with coke gas
supplied by Zaktady Koksownicze Watbrzych S A"

10




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Additional Notes and Explanations
(in thousand zlotys)

1.2 Indication of periods for which the consolidated financial statements are prepared

Consolidated financial statements of the Capital Group were prepared for the 12 months period ended
December 31, 2005. Consolidated financial statements include the comparative financial data for the
12 months period ended December 31, 2004.

1.3 Management Board Member and Supervisory Board Members

The Management Board as of December 31, 2005 comprised of:

Stephen Klein President of the Management Board
Anna Kwarcinska Member of the Management Board
Michat Koztowski Member of the Management Board

On June 10, 2005 Mr. Stephen Klein was appointed to the position of President of the Management
Board and Mr. Wojciech Cetnarski was appointed to the position of Vice - President of the
Management Board. On the same date, pursuant to the Supervisory Board resolution no. 8/111/2005
dated April 10, 2005, the delegation of Supervisory Board Chairman Mr. Zbigniew Prokopowicz to act
as President of the Management Board has ended.

The Supervisory Board adopted the resolution no.1 dated December 13, 2005 in which it accepted the
resignation of Mr. Grzegorz Skarzyiiski from Management Board. The Supervisory Board adopted the
resolution no.3 dated December 13, 2005 in which it accepted the resignation of Mr. Wojciech
Cetnarski from Management Board.

The Supervisory Board adopted the resolution no.4 dated December 13, 2005 in which it appointed
Mr. Michat Koziowski fo the Management Board of the Company.

Members of the Company’s Management Board as at December 31, 2005 were as follows:

Zbigniew Prokopowicz Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Michat Rusiecki Vice-president of the Supervisory Board
Aleksander Kacprzyk Supervisory Board Member

Andrew Cowiey Supervisory Board Member

Terry Williams Supervisory Board Member

Neven Dujic Supervisory Board Member

2. Going concern assumption

The financial statements of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures included in the consolidated
financial statements were prepared on the basis that these companies will be going concerns for the
period of at least twelve months subsequent to December 31, 2005. As at the date of signing the
financial statements, the Company’s Management Board is not aware of any facts or circumstances
which would indicate a threat to the Capital Group’s companies going concemn for at least twelve
months following the balance sheet date due to an intended or compulsory withdrawal from or
significant limitation in its current activities.

11




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Additional Notes and Explanations
{in thousand zlotys)

In 2005 one of the subsidiaries Energopep Sp. z 0.0., Warszawa ul. Wiertnicza 169 reported loss
which increased the negative net assets value. As of December 31, 2005 the total capital of that
company was negative and amounted to PLN 4,871 thousands. Had the profitability of that company
remained negative there would be a significant risk for this company to operate as a going concern.
We have received written representation from the parent company being the limited partner supporting
the company in the period of at least the next 12 months. According to the Commercial Code limited
partner is responsible for the liabilities of the company up fo the limitation sum which is PLN 50
thousand.

3. Acceptance of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statement was accepted by the Management Board for publication on
March 1, 2006.

12




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group

Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005

Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

4, Group’

s Structure
100%.. e e
SATURN Managemsrt Sp. 2 0.0.
9% o ¥ 1%
SATURM Management Sp. 2 o0
wWspdinicy, Spdtka Homandytowa
100% -
EMERGOPEP Zp. ¥ 0.0.
- 99% _ " 1%
- EMERGOPEP Sp. z 0., BC Jeziorna,
w Spdtka Homandytowa
95
|
D 100% o
L -
FG INTERFEF Sp. z 0.0.
= arr% -~ l 10%
L }
D INTERPEP Sp. Z oo, BEC Wizdw, Spotics
KWomandytoswa
L -
r 902 - 10%
L B
u )
——— IMTERPEP SP. Z 0.0, EC Zakrzow,
(- Spdtka Komandytowa
50% -
tdercury Energis-Przedsicbhiorstwwo
Produkcyino-Ustugnwe | Posradnictys
Comax Sp. z 0.0,,5poka Komandytowa
100% o
o
DIPOL Sp. £ o.0.
109 .
Mars Management s.r.0.
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Polish Energy Pariners Capital Group

Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005

Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

41 Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of the Parent Company and its
controlled Subsidiaries. The detailed information regarding these entities has been presented below.

Name of the entity

Seat

Type of business
activity

District Court

Polish Energy Partners S.A.

Warszawa,
. Wiertnicza 169

Energy secfor services

District Court for the
city of Warsaw, XX
Economic

Depariment of the
National Court
Register

Saturn Management Sp. z
0.0. i Wspdinicy Spdika
komandytowa

Warszawa,
ul. Wiertnicza 169

Energy sector services

District Court for the
city of Warsaw, XX
Economic

Department of the
National Court
Register

Energopep Sp. 2 0.0, EC
Jeziorna, Spotka

Warszawa,
ul. Wiertnicza 169

Energy sector services

District Court for the
city of Warsaw, XX

ul. Wiertnicza 169

komandytowa Economic
Department of the
National Court
Register

Dipol Sp. z 0.0. Warszawa, Fnergy sector services | District Court for the

city of Szezecin, XV
Economic
Department

Interpep Sp. z ograniczong
odpowiedzialnoscig EC
Wizow Sp. Komandytowa

Warszawa,
ul. Wiertnicza 169

Production of heat and
electricity

District Court for the
city of Warsaw, XX
Economic
Department of the
National Court
Register

Interpep Sp. z ograniczong
odpowiedzialnoscig EC
Zakrzow Sp. Komandytowa

Warszawa,
ul. Wiertnicza 169

Production of heat and
electricity

District Court for the
city of Warsaw, XX
Economic
Department of the
National Court
Register

Indirectly and directly the parent company owns 100% of shares in the consolidated subsidiaries

On May 23, 2005 the Company purchased the remaining 50% shares in Dipol Sp. z 0.0,

4.2 Associates included in the consolidated financial statements

14




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group

Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005

Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

Name of the entity Seat Type of business activity Percentage

share In share
capital

MERCURY Energia — Katowice, ul. | - generation, distribution, 50%

Przedsigbiorstwo Wandy 16 transmission of heat and electricity

Produkcyjno-Ustugowe

i Posrednictwa COMAX

Sp. z 0. 0., Spoika

komandytowa

4.3  Entities within the Capital Group excluded from the consolidated financial statements

Due to the fact that the stand alone and combined financial data of the companies presented below
are immaterial for the true and fair presentation of the financial and material situation and financial
result of the Capital Group, the below enumerated subsidiaries have not been consolidated pursuant
to the provisions of International Financial Reporting Standards.

Polskiego 154

Name Seat Type of business activity Percentage
share in equity
Subsidiaries
1. Interpep Sp. z c.0. Warszawa, - management, supervision 100%
ul. Wiertnicza and advisory  in conducting
business aclivities
169
2. Energopep Sp. zo.0. | Warszawa, - heat and electricity generation 100%
ul. Wiertnicza
169
3. Saturn Management Warszawa, - management, supervision and 100%
Sp. z 0.0, ul. Wiertnicza ad\{is_.c_:ry in conducting business
169 activities,
- market and public opinion research
4, Mars Management Ostrawa Financial, economic and 100 %
S.F.0. organizationa! advisory services,
wholesale activities, service and
sales intermediary
5. Notos Sp. z 0.0. Szczecin, ul. Generation and distribution of 50%
Wojska electricity

15
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Additional Notes and Explanations
(in thousand zlotys)

5. Comparability of the data presented

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31,2004 were prepared with the provisions of
Accounting Act (Journal of Laws No. 76 dated, June 17, 2002) with amendments and were subject to
restatement to the IFRS in order fo assure comparability of the consolidated data. The summary and
discussion of the results of the applied adjustments is presented in note 7.

6. Accounting policies applied

6.1 Changes in the accounting principles applied

Starting from January 1, 2005 the Group applies accounting standards approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (,JASB”). In relation to the statutory standalone and consolidated
financial statements the Company applies International Financial Reporting Standards (,IFRS?)
starting from January 1, 2005. Pursuant to IAS 1 "Presentation of financial statements” IFRS include
international Financial Reporting Standards (,JIFRS"), International Accounting Standards (‘IAS”) and
International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee {,IFRIC”).

The IASB issued IFRS 1 ,First adoption of IFRS” which applies to the preparation of financial
statements starting from January 1, 2004 or later. IFRS 1 applies to the entities which prepare its
financial statements in accordance with IFRS for the first time or to the entities which prepared its
financial statements in accordance with IFRS in previous years but the financial statement included
information about noncompliance with specific standards. IFRS 1 requires from the Company that the
first financial statement in accordance with IFRS is the first yearly financial statement in which the
entity applies all the IFRS together with the statement claiming compliance with ali [FRS.

The consolidated financial statement is the first full yearly consolidated financial statement prepared
with the provisions of IFRS. For the purposes of this consolidated financial statement the date of first
adoption is January 1, 2004. The last consolidated financial statement of the Group prepared with the
provisions of Polish accounting standards, defined in the Accounting Act was the consolidated
financial statement prepared for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Starting from January 1, 2005 the Group Polish Energy Partners S.A., according to the resolution no.3
of General Shareholders Meeting dated April 13, 2005 (approved based on art 45.1.¢ of Accounting
Act) prepares its standalone statutory financial statements in accordance with IFRS approved by
European Commission for 2005.

According to IFRS 1 the consolidated financial statements were prepared in such a way as if the
Group always applied IFRS. The Group used following allowed exemptions from restatement which
are mentioned in the IFRS 1:

» The parent company did not restate its settlements with subsidiaries which were made based
on polish accounting standards and arose before the first adoption of IFRS.
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6.2 New standards and interpretations which were published but are not in force yet

The following standards and interpretations were issued by the 1ASB or IFRIC, but are not in force yet:

» |FRS 6: exploration for and evaluaticn of mineral resources
= |FRS 7: Financial instrument, disclosures
» Interpretation IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

» Interpretation IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests Arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Funds

» Interpretation IFRIC 6 Liabilities Arising from Participating in a Specific Market - Waste
Electrical and Electronic Equipment

» Interpretation IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 Financial Reporting
in Hyperinflationary Economies”

» Interpretation IFRIC & Scope of IFRS 2

The application of new standard or interpretation will not have a significant impact on the accounting
principles followed by the Group.

6.3 Format and the basis of preparing the consolidated financial statement

The consclidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with the provisions of
International Accounting Siandards/ International Financial Reporting Standards. The financial
statements cover the period from January 1, to December 31, 2005 and the comparable period from
January 1, to December 31, 2004.

The consolidated financial statements were prepared based on the historic cost convention which was
modified in relation to financial instruments.

6.4 Compliance representation

As of January 1, 2005 the Accounting Act requires that the Group prepares its consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IAS, IFRS and with interpretations related to them published in form of
a decree of European Commission,

As of the date of theses financial statements, taking into consideration the process of implementation
of IFRS in the EU and the scope of business of the Company there is no difference between IAS,
IFRS and the interpretaticns related to them published in form of a decree of European Commission
("{FRS approved for application by the EC").

The Group applied the IFRS ruling as at December 31, 2005.

The presented consolidated financial statements comply with all IFRS requirements, so they present a
complete and fair view of financial situation of the Company as of December 31, 2005 and December
31, 2004 in accordance with IFRS requirements.

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2004 were prepared with the provisions of
Accounting Act and were audited as of December 31, 2004 and then were subject to restatement to
the IFRS in order to assure comparability of the consclidated data. The summary and discussion of
the resulis of the applied adjustments is presented in note 7.
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6.5 Estimates

6.5.1. Professional judgment

In the process of application of the accounting principles, due {o issues raised below, the main impact
had the professional judgment of the management, apart from accounting estimates:

- leasing classification — the Group as the lessor,

6.5.2. Uncertainty of estimates

Below there are presented the main assumptions relating to the future and other key factors of
uncertainty as of the balance sheet date, which might be subject to risk of significant adjustments to
their value in the next financial year:

- management options,

- impairment write downs

- provisions for doubtful debt,
- provisions for fitigation.

8.6 Functional currency and the reporting currency of the consolidated financial statements

The functional currency of the parent company and the reporting currency is Polish zloty.

6.7 The principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated within the period from the taking-over of confrol by a parent
company until such control ends. The control of the parent company is effected when the parent have
directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries more than haif of the votes in a given company unless it
can be proved that such a number of votes does not assure control. The control is also in a situation
when the company can influence the operational and financial pelicy of a given company.

The assets and liabilities of the Subsidiary as at the date of including it to the consolidated financial
statements are valued at fair value. The difference between the fair value of such assets and liabilities
and the take-over price gives rise to the establishment of the goodwill or the negative goodwill which
are disclosed in a separate item of the consolidated balance sheet.

All material intercompany balances and transactions between the entities of the Group, including
unrealized gains resulting form these transactions were completely eliminated in consolidation.
Unrealized losses are eliminated unless it proves impairment.

Shares in associates are valued with equity method. Associates are entities which are significantly
influenced by the parent company and which are neither subsidiaries of parent company nor joint
ventures. The financial statements of associates are the basis for valuation of shares owned by the
parent company using equity method. The financial year of associates is equal to the financial year of
the parent company. Associates apply accounting policies prescribed in the Accounting Act dated
September 29, 1994 with amendments (Journal of Laws No. 76, dated June 17, 2002). Before
caiculating the proportionate share of parent company in the financial result of such companies the
financial statements of associates are restated to IFRS applied by the Group.
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Proportionate share of parent company in the financial result of such companies is presented
separately in the consolidated profit and loss account. Value of such company resulting from purchase
of these shares is presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

Investments in subsidiaries, jointly conirolled entities and associates excluded from consolidation are
valued at historical cost adjusted for impairment.

6.8 Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is measured initially as the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the acquired identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. After initial recognition goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment charges. Impairment tests are performed every year. Goodwill is not
amortized.

As of the date of business combination goodwill is allocated to each cash generating unit which may
benefit from combination synergy. Impairment is calculated by estimating cash generating unit
recoverable amount to which allocated goodwill refers. If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is lower than carrying value an impairment loss is charged to profit and loss account. If
goodwill is part of the cash generating unit and there is a sale of part of the cash generating unit when
calculating the profit or loss of this transaction the goodwill related to the sold unit is included in its
carrying value. In these circumstances the sold goodwill is calculated based on the relative value of
sold unit and the remaining part of the cash generating unit.

6.9 Intangible assets

intangible assets include assets which meet following criteria;

- Can be separated or divided from the entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged either individually or together with a related contract, asset or liability or

- Arises from contractual or other legal rights, regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations.

Intangible assets resuiting from a separate transaction are recorded in the balance sheet at the
purchase price. Intangible assets resulting from entity acquisition fransaction are initially recorded in
the balance sheet at fair value as of the purchase date.

After initial recognition the intangible asset are valued using the historical cost model.

intangible assets are tested every year against impairment. The estimated useful lives are also
verified each year and restated in the following year if necessary.

Expected economic useful lives are as follows:

Patents, licenses, trade marks 1 year
Computer software 2-5 years
Other intangible assets 5 years

6.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition or production cost, or revalued amount, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment write-downs. The purchase price of the right of perpetual
usufruct to land is the value of the right pursuant to the decision issued by the municipality at the
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moment of granting such right. Land is valued at its acquisition price reduced by write-offs due to
impairment.

Costs incurred on an asset already in use, such as repairs, overhauls or operating fees, are expensed
as incurred. If, however, it is possible to show that such costs increase the expected future economic
henefits of a given fixed asset beyond the original expected benefits they are capitalized into the vaiue
of the asset.

Assets, except for land, are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives.
Perpetual usufruct to land 14 years

Buildings, premises and other civil and water engineering structures 14 years

Plant and machinery 2.5-14 years
Transport 2.5-5 years
Other fixed assets 5-7 years

Each class of assets is recorded separately and depreciated over its estimated useful life.

When acquired the fixed assets are classified into components with material value for which a useful
life can be estimated.

If there are any indications of impairment of the asset so that the currying value of the assets can not
be recovered, the Group performs an impairment test for each class of assel If there are any
indications that an impairment of asset exists and the carrying value exceeds recoverable amount
then the asset or cash generating units which these assets constitute is written of the its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is higher of net realizable value or value in use. While estimating the
value in use estimated future cash flows are discounted to present value using the discount rate. The
discount rate reflects market time value estimates and risk associated with the particular asset. In
case of an asset that can not separately be treated as cash generating unit recoverable amount is
established for the unit to which the asset is classified. The impairment write downs are expensed o
profit and loss account.

A fixed asset may be derecognized from the balance sheet after selling the asset or if there are no
expected probable economic benefits resulting from further use of asset. All the losses or gains
resulting from such an asset removal from the balance sheet (calculated as the difference between
sales proceeds and net book value of the asset) are expensed in the profit and loss account in the
period in which the derecognition was done.

6.11 Assets under construction

Assets under construction are carried at the value of aggregate costs directly attributed to their
acquisition or manufacture, including financial costs, reduced by write-offs due to impairment. Assets
under construction also include materials for construction. Assets under construction are not
depreciated until they are completed and available for use.

6.12 Shares in joint ventures
The Group has a joint venture which comprises cooperation on completing the development of wind

farm projects. The necessary investment for development of wind farm projects is capitalized in the
Group assets and in the assets of the joint venture partner.
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6.13 Leasing

Group as the leasee

Financial lease agreements which transfer to the Group all of the risks and rewards relating to
ownership of the asset are initially recognized in the balance sheet at the inception date at the lower of
two values: fair value of the leased assets or present value of minimum lease payments. Lease
payments are divided between financial revenues/costs and decrease of receivables/liabilities balance
in a way enabling to achieve a fixed interest rate from the outstanding receivable/obligation. Financial
costs are directly expensed in the profit and loss account.

Fixed assets used under the financial lease agreement are depreciated over shorter of two periods:
estimated useful life or lease period.

Lease agreements in which the lessor has all of the risks and rewards relating to ownership of the
asset are classified as operational lease. Lease paymenis resulting from operational lease are
expensed in the profit and loss account using the straight line method over the lease period.

Group as the lessor

One of the Group entities is party of lease agreement which assumes lease of fixed asset and
intangible assets over a specified period of time.

Pursuant to IAS 17 the above mentioned lease agreement meets the criteria of financial lease and in
this way was presented in the consclidated financial statements of the Group. For tax purposes this
transaction is treated as operational lease.

in case of a financial lease, where the agreement results in substantially all of the risks and rewards
refating to ownership of the asset being transferred to the user of the equipment, the subject of the
lease agreement is recorded in lessee's assets as fixed asset based on the current value of minimum
lease payments set at the lease inception. In lessor's books the assels transferred under financial
lease agreement are presented as receivables amounting to lease investment amount. Lease
payments are divided between financial revenues/costs and decrease of receivables/liabilities balance
in a way enabling to achieve a fixed interest rate from the outstanding receivable/obligation. Financial
revenues and costs are recorded directly in the profit and loss accounts.

The lease payments resulting from agreements which do not fulfill the criteria of a financial leasing are
recorded as costs or revenues in the profit and loss accounts based on a straight-line method for the
lease agreement period.
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6.14 Inventory

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable vaiue. Costs incurred in bringing each
product to its present location and condition is accounted for based on a ,weighted average” method.

Production costs and production in progress costs include direct material costs, workers cost and
allocated, justified indirect production costs, established at the normal usage of production capacity.

Net realizable value is the selling price estimated at the balance sheet date net of VAT and excise
taxes less rebates and discounts less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

6.15 Short- and long-term receivables

Trade receivables except for receivables described in 5.1 are recognized and carried at original
invoice amount less an allowance for any doubtful and uncollectible amounts.

An estimate for doubtful debts is made based on the assessment of the probability of receivables
collection to reflect the realizable value of receivables. The allowance is recorded, as either operating
costs or financial costs, depending on the type of receivable.

Balances of receivables which are subsequently written-off reduce the allowance created against the
account.

Balances of receivables which are subsequently written-off where there was no full or partial
allowance previously created are expensed as other operating costs or financial costs.

Receivables include also receivables from financial lease.

if the impact of time value of money is material the value of receivables is established at the present
value using the discount rate. The discount rate reflects market time value estimates. if the applied
method assumes discounting then the increase in receivables due to time is recorded as financial
income.

6.16 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions denominated in non-Polish currencies are translated into Polish equivalents at the rate of
exchange on the date of the fransaction.

As at the balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities expressed in currencies other than Polish
zlotys are translated into Polish zlotys at the average exchange rate of the National Bank of Poland.
Foreign currency differences resuiting from the above transaction are reported in the financial income
or financial cosis respectively.

Non monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost expressed in foreign currency are
recalculated at the historical exchange rate at the transaction date. Non monetary assets and liabilities
measured at fair value are recalculated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of valuation.

For the purpose of valuation, the following exchange rates have been adopted:
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31.12.2005 31.12.2004
usD 3,2613 2,9904
EUR 3,8598 4,0790
CAD 2.,8093 2,4827
CHF 2,4788 2,6421
GBP 56253 -

6.17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank and short-term deposits held until maturity are carried at fair value.

The cash and cash equivalents item presented in the consolidated cash flow statement includes cash
in hand, bank deposits, treasury bills and bonds investment fund units which were not treated as
investment activity.

6.18 Prepaid and accrued expenses

The Company recognizes a prepayment if costs incurred relate to future reporting periods and accrues
expenses as a liability for costs incurred in the current reporting period in the amount of probable
liabitities due in current reporting period.

6.19 Share capital

Ordinary share capital is recorded in the amount stated in the Statutes as entered in the court register.
Differences between the fair value of amounts received and the par value of shares is recorded as
share premium. In the case of purchase of own shares, the amount of payment for shares is debited
against the share capital and is disclosed in the balance sheet in equity. Declared but unpaid cash
contributions to capital are recorded as share capital due from shareholders.

6.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, such that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is certain or
highly probable to be required to setile the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

If the Group expects that costs which were provided will be reimbursed i.e. from insurance company
then this reimbursement is recognized as asset but then and only then if it is virtually certain that the
reimbursement will be collected. Costs relating to s specified provision are incurred in the profit and
loss account net of any reimbursements. In case the time value of money is material factor the
provision is measured using the present value of future cash flows at the discount rate which reflects
current market estimate of time value of money and the risk related to the specified liability. If the
discount method is applied the increase in the provision as time passes will be recognized as
borrowing cost.
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6.21 Provisions for jubilee awards and retirement allowances

According to the company's remuneration system, employees have right to jubilee awards and
retirement allowances. Jubilee awards are paid after servicing a specified amount of years. Retirement
{ pension allowances are paid at the time of retirement / pension. The Group creates provision for the
abovementioned allowances to distribute the jubilee awards and retirement / pension allowances
along the whole period of employment in the Company. According to IAS 19 jubilee awards are other
long term pension obligations and retirement allowances are programs of specified allowances after
servicing period. Present value of these liabilities at each balance sheet date is calculated by an
independent actuary. The calculated liabilities are equal to the discounted payments which will be paid
in the future taking into account rotation and relate to the period till the balance sheet date.
Demographical information and rotation information are based on historical data. Actuarial gains and
losses are recognized in the profit and loss account.

6.22 Loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognized at cost, being the value of the consideration received
net of acquisition costs associated with the borrowing/loan. After initial recognition, all interest-bearing
joans and borrowings, other than liabilities held for trading, are subsequently measured at amortized
cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Costs related to loan acquisition, discounts and premiums received at the moment of liability
settiernent are taken into account when calculating the amortized cost.

Profits and losses are recorded in the profit and loss account at the moment of liability removal and
when calculating the payment.

6.23 Borrowing costs

The costs of loans and credits including foreign exchange resulting from loans and credits drawn in
foreign currency which can be directly attributed to purchase, construction or production of asset,
pursuant to the allowed alternative in the IAS 23 is capitalized as part of the purchase price or
production cost of the asset. The cost of external financing includes interest and profits or losses from
foreign exchange differences up to the amount referring to the interest cost.

6.24 Deferred Tax

Deferred income tax is provided for, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized on all taxable temporary differences:

- With exempt when the deferred tax liability arises due to initial recognition of goodwilt or
the initial recognition of asset or liability is in a transaction that is not a business
combination and at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit, and

- In case of positive temporary differences resulting from investment in subsidiaries,
associates and shares in joint ventures - except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused
tax assets and unused tax losses, to the exient that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused
tax losses can be utilized.

- With exempt when the deferred tax asset arises due the initial recognition of asset or
liability is in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit, and

- In case of negative temporary differences resulting from investment in subsidiaries,
associates and shares in joint ventures the deferred tax asset is recognized in the balance
sheet in the amount which is probable that in foreseeable future the above mentioned
differences will reverse and taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is realized or the fiability is seftled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted at the balance sheet date.

The income tax relating to the items directly recorded in net assets is recorded in net assets and not in
the profit and loss account.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented net in the consolidated balance sheet.

6.25 Financial instruments

Financial instruments are classified into one of the following four categories:

— Held to maturity,
- Fair value through profit and loss
— Originating loans and receivables

- Available for sale.

A held- to — maturity asset is one that has a fixed maturity and fixed or determinable payments and
that the entity has the positive intent and ability to hold until maturity. Held — to — maturity assets are
measured at amortized cost calculated using the effective interest method.

Financial instruments acquired in order to gain on short term price changes are classified as financial
instruments fair vafue through profit and loss. Fair value through profit and loss financial instruments
are valued in fair value without any transaction costs, taking into account the market value as at the
balance sheet date. Changes in these instruments are recorded in financial revenues and costs.

Originating loans and receivables are valued using amortized cost method.

All the remaining financial assets are financial assets available for sale. Financial assets available for
sale are valued at fair value without any transaction costs, taking into account the market value as at
the balance sheet date. If there is no active market for such instruments and no reliable available
valuation using alternative methods, available for sale financial assets are valued at historical cost less
impairment.

Positive and negative difference between fair value and historical costs, after deferred tax, relating to
available for sale assets (if active market exists or fair value can be reliably measured) is recorded in
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revaluation capital. The loss in value of available for sale financial assets is recorded as financial cost
in the profit and loss account.

Held — to — maturity financial assets are classified as long term assets if they maturity exceeds 12
months from balance sheet date.

Fair value through profit and loss financial assets are classifies as current assets if the management
intends to close the position within 12 months from the balance sheet date.

Purchase and sale of financial assets are initially recognized as at the date of the transaction. Initial
measurement includes purchase price which is fair value including transaction costs.

Financial liabilities which are not fair value through profit and loss financial instruments are valued at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Financial instrument is derecognized from the balance sheet when the Group loses contrel over
contractual rights comprising this instrument. Typically this happens when the instrument is sold and
all the cash flows related to this instrument will now be attributed to an independent third party.

6.26 Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date by the Group’s companies to determine whether
there is objective evidence that an asset or group of assets may be impaired. If such evidence exists,
the estimated recoverable amount of that asset is determined. If the carrying value of an asset or cash
generating unit is higher than the recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized for the
difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying amount. The costs of any write-downs
are included in other operating expenses. If there were previous asset revaluation then the impairment
loss is charged against the revaluation capital and the remaining impairment loss is charged to the
profit and loss account for the current period.

6.27 Recognition of revenues

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognized net of VAT tax, excise
duty and rebates. When recognizing revenues the below presented criteria also apply.

6.27.1. Sale of goods and products

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed
to the buyer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration less VAT. Revenue from
sales of electricity includes excise tax.

6.27.2. Provision of services

Proceeds from the provision of services are recognized based on the level of completion of the given
service, if this may be reliably estimated. Where the effects of the transaction for the provision of
services may not be reliably estimated, proceeds from the provision of services are recognized only up
to the amount of costs incurred in this respect.
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6.27.3. interest

Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues (taking into account the effective yield on the asset
which is the discount rate which discounts future cash flows over the estimated use of financial
instruments) in relation to the net book value of given financial instrument class.

6.27.4. Dividends

Dividends due are recorded at the moment of dividend rights for the shareholders.

6.27.5. Government Grants

Government grants are recognized in fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the entity will
comply with the relevant conditions and the grant will be received.

A grant that is compensation for expenses is recognized as income in the period o match the related
costs that they are intended to compensate. Grant that relate to the acquisition of an asset are
recognized in accrued income and are subseguently recognized in income as the asset is depreciated
over the economic useful life.

6.28 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to holders of ordinary
shares by the weighted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to holders of ordinary
shares by the weighted average number of ordinary shares ouistanding which are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

6.29 Contingent liabilities and assets

Contingent liabilities are obligations whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence of uncertain
future events. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the balance sheel However they are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, unless the probability of an outflow is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the balance sheet unless the realization is virtually certain.

6.30 Emission rights

The Group provides for the emission rights in case the Group has a deficit of emission rights. In case
of emission rights surplus over the actual physical emission, this surplus is recorded off balance.

6.31 Share based payments

The management board member of the Group receive share based payments which means that they
render services in exchange for shares or rights to obtain shares. The cost of such equity transacticns
with management board members is valued at fair value at the date of granting of such rights. The
cumulated cost resulting from such equity transactions as at each balance sheet date lill the date of
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obtaining the rights reflects the flow of rights, number of awards to which right — in the opinion of
management board as at that date based on best estimate of number of equity instruments — will
finally be acquired.As of the date of these financial statements the share options do not have dilutive
effect on the earnings per share.

7. Effect of new standards application and changes in accounting policies

Types of adjustments which the Group had to make in order to fully apply IFRS and their impact on
the Net Profit and Net Assets of the comparable period are presented below:

Net Assets as Net Assets as  Net Profit for
at December atJanuary 1, the year ended

31, 2004 2004 December 31,

2004

Data presented in the consolidated

financial staterments prepared in

accordance with Polish Accounting 102.025 93.398 8.627

Standards (PAS)

7.1.  Effect of IFRS 1 application: (901} 1.073 (1.974)

7.1.1. Fixed Assets costs (592) 1.500 (2.092)

7.1.2 Leasing classification - {3) 3

7.1.3 Grants received 79 - 79

7.1.4 Cost reimbursement (388) (424) 36

Data presented in the consolidated

financial statements prepared in 101.124 94.471 6.653

accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS}

The amounts for the adjustments include the impact of deferred tax. As a result of IFRS 1 application
the deferred tax asset increased by the amount of 139 thousands zlotys as at December 31, 2004.

Total Assets Total Assets

as at as at January
December 31, 1, 2004
2004

Data presented in the consolidated financial

statements prepared in accordance with 352.688

Polish Accounting Standards (PAS) 341.274

7.1. Effect of IFRS 1 application (997} 1.069

7.1.1. Fixed Assets costs {591) 1.500

7.1.2 Leasing classification - 7

7.1.3 Grants received - -

7.1.4 Cost reimbursement {388) (424)

7.1.5. Social Fund reclassification (18) {14}

Data presented in the consolidated financial

statements prepared in accordance with 140.277 263757

International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)
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7.1 Effect of IFRS 1 adoption

The Group plans to adopt the IFRS 1 in the financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2005 and in the quarterly consolidated financial statements for appropriate quarters of 2005. IFRS 1
requires that the Group recognizes all the assets and liabilities which fulfill the criteria of IFRS 1 and
values these assets in accordance with each IFRS, The transition date will be January 1, 2004. The
Company prepared the consolidated financial statements in accordance with these IFRS which are
valid on December 31, 2005.

The fast consolidated financial statement of the Group prepared with the provisions of Polish
accounting standards, defined in the Accounting Act was the consolidated financial statement
prepared for the year ended December 31, 2004,

7.1.1 Value of Tangible Fixed Assets

Pursuant to IFRS 1, as of the date of first adoption of IFRS the Group decided to apply the balance
sheet value of tangible fixed assets, intangible assets and investment property pursuant to the
previously applied Polish accounting standards, because these standards comply with specific IFRS
requirements,

The effect of the deemed cost of tangible fixed assets is presented in the table below:

Carrying value in Carrying value in
accordance with accordance with
PAS IERS Value adjustment

January 1, 2004  January 1, 2004

Land and Buildings 4.994 6.494 1.500
Machines and Fixtures 16.182 19.182 -
24176 25676 1.500

Pursuant to |IAS 16 the parent company recognized the costs of renovation, removal of fixed asset.
The company is cbliged to incur these costs due to usage of the fixed asset for certain period of time
for the purposes other than finished goods production.

The impact on net profit for the year 2004 resuits from decomposition of tangible fixed assets into
components as of January 1, 2004 and from depreciation of assets partially not used.
7.1.2 Leasing classification

The leasing contracts concluded by the parent company were classified in accordance with IAS 17 as
financial leases.

30




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Additional Notes and Explanations
(in thousand zlotys)

7.1.3 Government grant

Grants received are settled in accordance with 1AS 20. Grants are presented as deferred income
which is in a rational and systematic manner recognized as revenue over the period of estimated
useful life of the asset.

7.1.4 Cost reimbursement

Pursuant to IAS 37.53 the Group recognized assets resulting from rights to cost reimbursement. In
consequence the impairment write down were reversed and the goodwill was written off as not
meeting the definition.

7.1.5 Reclassification of Social Fund

The assets and liabilities of social fund are presented in the balance sheet in the net amount.
8. Information on business segment and geographical segment reporting

The company performed an analysis in order to identify potential business segments. The main
criterion to identify the segments is difference in risk and retumns achieved by each segment. As a
result of this analysis the following segments were identified: industrial energy outsourcing which
consists of rendering operational services, industrial energy outsourcing which consists of heat and
electricity production and wind energy segment. There are presented in the table below the basic data
about the identified segments.

81122005 ‘Continued operations I )
; Other ouisourcing -
Outsourcing - operating production of electricity
I 3 service and heat Wind energy | Tolal

Revenues from third party sales . i i 32668 28429 - 61097
Intersegment fransactions o - - - :
Totaltevenues e 32668 2842 . 81097,
Result of segment 20 956 2288 T j4se)y 22763
Unallocated expenses o - ) - - {9 895)
Other operating incomelexpense } o — - I (52)
Operating profit . " : I LA
Financial incame/cost R . ol i I R U4
Gross profit ~ S L 12526
tncome fax I : o B8
Net profi I & : - I S
‘Segment assets R e . 25072 . DO 5TE 23091 37873,
Unallocated assets __ _ . et -
Total assets : S W 25072 . .. 80376 _ B0 378739,
Segment liabiiities . ] 239684 24 507; 1226 265 377
Unallocated liabilities - : - 1791 e SR L)
Total liabilities T L. 235 : ... %28 126 26TME
f’urch."ase of intangible and tangible fixed assets, a7 7478 18 855 26 420
including S . S BT S
- Tangible fixed assets . ] N L — _Tas51 16848 26 381
- Inangitle assets , [ N WA T €]
‘Depreciafion B R S - -2 7 S — L
Impairment write downs : (2270)
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31.12.2004 Continued operations B R
Cther outsourcing - |
Cutscurcing - operating | production of electricity :

...Benvice ; ....and heat .. Wind energy |

Revenues from third party sales T T e 28330,

Intersegment transactions B S IO
‘Total revenues 21 581: 28 330
Resultofsegment e+~ 4529
‘Unallocated expenses . S S -
:Other operating income/expense
‘Operating profit

‘Financial incomefcost
Grossprofit
Incometax

‘Net profit

o (s
.. 8382

270418 §9 868

Foml st o 77
12 - 239183

Segmentlisbiiies o 2642

Unallocated fiabilities - T B B
Total liabilities 225412 e w 23315%
!’urche_:se of intangible and tangible fixed assets, 2379 834 i 3013
including ; .
- Tangible fixed asset [ ST X 1| DU - 2947,
- Inangible assets o U |- S ;| SR S
|Depreciation 148 2738 L
.Impairment write downs - {2 DBO).:

The Group operates on Polish territory (100% of revenue)} which regions due to their similar economic
conditions and risks should be treated as homogeneous territory. Due to the above the Group des not
have any gecgraphicatl sectors.

9. Average exchange rate of Polish zloty in relation to EURO

In the period covered by these financial statements and consolidated comparable data the exchange
rates published by NBP in relation to EURO amounted tfo:

Exchange rate

Average as at the

exchange
rate

Minimum
exchange rate

Maximum
exchange rate

balance sheet
date

31.12.2005

4,0233

3,8223

4,2756

3,8598

31.12.2004

4,5182

4,0518

49149

4,0780
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10.Selected Financial Data of the Capital Group recalculated to EURO

The below presented financial data were recalculated to EURO based on the following rules:

- balance sheet items — average exchange rated published by NBP as of December 31, 2004

and December 31, 2005 which were presented in the note 9 of this financial statement,

- profit and loss items and cash flow items — average exchange rate being the arithmetic mean

of average exchange rates published by NBP as of the last date of each month in 2004 and

2005 which were presented in note 9 of this financial statement

31.12.2006 31.12.2004
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET thd. zlotys | Thd. EURO | thd. zlotys | Thd. EURO
Total Assets 378739 98 124 340 277 83 422
|, Fixed Assets 293 810 78 146 282 369 68 225
1i. Current Assets 84 829 21978 57 908 14 197
Total Equity and Liabilities 378 739 o8 124 340 277 83 422
i. Shareholders Equity 111621 28 919 101 124 24 792
II. Liabilities 267 118 69 205 239 163 58 630
CONSOLIDATED RPOFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Thd.. Thd..
thd. zlotys EURO thd, zlotys EURC
61097 15186 48 911 11 047
|. Sales revenue
35 043 8 710 31 966 7 075
)i, Cost of goods sold ( ) ¢ ) ( ) ( )
26 054 6 476 17 945 3972
Hl. Gross profit on sales
V. Selling expense ] ] ) ]
o . (13 152} (3 269) (11 898} (2 633)
V. General and administration costs
12 902 3207 6 047 1338
V. Profit on sales
1 356 337 9 689 2144
VII. Other operating income
1082 269 1236 274
VIil. Other operating expense ¢ ) ( ) ( ) ( )
13178 3275 14 499 3209
IX. Operating profit
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11 9598 2972 13 530 2904
X. Financial income
(12 616) (3 136) {19 139) (4 236)
Xk Financial expense
8 1 {49) {11)
Xk Profit/Loss from subordinate units
12 525 3113 8 841 1957
XIl, Gross profitiloss on sales
- 6 226 8 841 1957
XIV. Gross profitlloss
- - 2188 484
XV. Corporate income tax
9 341 6226 6 653 1472
XVI. Net profit/loss
31.12.2005 31.12.2004
Thd.. Thd..
Consolidated Cash Flows Statement thd. zlotys EURO thd. zlotys EURO
12 525 3INM3 8 841 1957

I. Gross profit/loss

) (9 244) (2 298) 8 665 1918
I, Total adjustments

3281 815 17 506 3875
A. Cash flow from operating acfivities

(23 938) (56 950)| {(25162) (5 569)

B. Net cash flow from investing activities

27 003 6712 10 941 2422
C. Net cash flow from financing activities

6 346 1577 3285 727

D. Net change in cash and cash equivalents

11.Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the company for
the period divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding.

The diluted earnings per share are the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (after adjusting for
interest from redeemable preference shares convertible into ordinary shares) divided by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding (adjusted for the diluting impact of options and diluting
redeemable preference shares convertible into ordinary shares).

in the table below there are presented data relating to the profit and number of shares which were
used to caiculate basic and diluted EPS.

3122005 31422004

aNetproft s ees
b) Weighted average number of shares . 18060422 17932392
- ©) Earnings per share {in zloty) G52 037
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Number of
shares to the
Number of weighted
date Number of shares  New issue months average
2005-01-01 17 932 392 12 7 471830
2005-06-01 18 114 751 182 358 7 7 547 813
2005-11-01 18 184 673 69 922 2 3030779
2005-12-31 18 184 673
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 2005 18 050 422
Dilution effect
2005-12-31 70908 0,002740 194
Weighted diluted number of ordinary shares in 2005 18 050 616

In the period from the balance sheet date till the date of preparation of this consolidated financial
statement there were no other transactions relating to the ordinary shares and potential ordinary

shares.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate the basic and diluted EPS from

discontinued operations is presented in the table above.
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12.Intangible assets

. patents, ficences, concessions

Intangible fixed assats  andsimiarassets.  Total intangibla

fixed assets

: computer software

:1 Gross okvalue ofmtanglblefxed PR, begmnmg ufthe peﬂod' 535 e
a) increase, miud:ng o o - 39 2
K value of intangible fixed assefs at the end of the period D

iaion atthe beginning oftheperiod | e ) |
pe o 50) B 7 SO .
4. Accumulated amortization at the end of theperiod " (397) @ 58
5. Impairment write-downs at the beginning of the period _ e et R 5
6. Impaiment writ-towns afthe end oftheperiod B I R -
7. Net book value of mtang;ble fixed assets at the begmnmg of the period ) S % 38
8. Net book value of intangiblefixed assets at the end ofthe period i 2 L R/

reported as of 31-12-2004

a

patents, licences, concessions

Intangible fixed assets and similar assats: Total intangible

fixed assets

H

computer software

1. Gross book value of |ntang;ble fixed assets at the begmmng ofthe period 50 248 520
a) increase, inluing: R 6 8 66

- purchase R - 66
b) decrease, incuding: e o) ) (1)
_ssleandliguidaton U M. .
2. Gross book value of intangible fixed assets at the end of the period ) i 985 263 585
:3. Accumulated amortization at the beginning o{“the penod o {441) (e {441}

- Amorization in the period - (107)

-decrease, including: o ' ‘ 1
. -saleand lquidaion e !
4. Accumulated amortization at the end ofthe per:od —— (547) i
5. Impairment write-downs a the begmmng of the period - | .
6. Impament witedowns at the end o the prid B M

7. Net book value of intangible fixed assets at the beglnmngofthe permd o T 45 N
8. Net book value of intangible fixed assets at the end of the period - -
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Teported as of 31-12-2004

Tangible fixed assets
- _ . L . -prepaid for i
- tand (including - buildings and - plant and ) - other tangible ¢ - construction in | . Total tangible
usufruct) constructions rrachinery - vehicles fixed assels | progress construcion in fixed assets
progress
A oBmm uoow value of E:a_u_m mxmn assets m:__o umm_z_.__:m of the period 33 10499 3034 mnmm M1 52 805
: - 500 550 272 69 wm Sm.
- 500 165! 272 69 35 801 ,
- ather . - 385 - - - 185
'b) decrease, including; (262) - (16) . (14) (42 441) (42753)
- } - (16) - (14) -

- other - - - - -

- trasnfers (282) - - - -
/2. Gross book value of tangible fixed assets at the end of the period 4 40999 30875 798 566,
w >on:3=_m$a depreciation at the beginning of the period ) {29} (1 651): {5 em..mu {177} ﬁaem - 8 Nonm
- qmuan_m:c: in the period (17 {576)! (2051} {151} (85) - (2 830);
______ : O 8 - T - 15/
- sale and | m_am,_o: - - 8 - 7 G
-t qmmmaﬁ 36 - - . - 36
a >nn=3_._§3 depreciation at ma m_._n_ of the period {10) {2 227} (8042 (424) ) (11031}
m _Bum:am_ﬂ write-downs at Em wmma_.__zm of the period - {2 354) Aﬂmwu - . {7 507)
increase - - (68) S (86)
) - 2354 4652 - 7046
6 Sum_qamun wrile-downs at the end of the _umzon . . (1328 . . . T e
7. Net book value of tangible fixed assets at the beginning of the period 302 5494 19 189| 349 10597 o 37096,
za w.oor <mm=m o* tangible fi fixed assets at the end of the period 39 8772 A u?— 470 2951 33878

As of December 31, 2004 the land and buildings were pledged for bank loan repayment.

In 2004 the Group reversed impairment write downs because the financial condition of one of the key customers of the Group significantly improved.
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14.Fixed assets — ownership structure

15.Long term receivables

used basedonlease agreement ...
Total tangible fixed assets |

731422005 | 31.12.2004
a) From affiliates -
b) From others - leasing 231587 243651
Long term receivables,net 23 587 243 651
Long term receivables, gross 231 587 243651,
16.Long term financial assets

31.12.2005 31.12.2004
a)in subsidiaries 98 188
- shares 198 168
b} in associates 6195 3877
R 1 e D 756 .y
- loans graned 5439 3036
{Total long-term financial assets 6 393 4045
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(in thousand zlotys)

reported as of 31.12.2005

'Shares in affiliates

Ne.

indication of other sourzes of controlfjointly control/

total equity of the

E:nma share capital Smmmnqmm

Narre of the Company with indication of legat form sqnificant inluence than stated in section ) o k) entity Share capital amount} Reserve capita

1 ENERGCPEP Spélka 7 ograniczon, odpowiedzialnoscig *) no data 50 - -
2 INTERPEP Spétka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia *) o data 50, - -
3 SATURN MANAGEMENT Spotka z ograniczong, odpowiedzialnoscia *) no data 116 50 -
, ?mﬁ:q Energia - Przedsiebiorstwo _uﬂo%,_né.sa Ustugowe i Posrednictwa Comax Spotka z o datal 1791 1880 ) i
jograniczong, &voimﬁmmzown_m_ Spatka komandytowa *) :
mm Mars Management, s.r.0%) no amﬁmm 28 mm b
no data 50 50, ) ")

mmzosw Sp.zo.w.”
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

reported as of 31.12.2004

mmq.m_.a..m in affiliates

Affilizte type (subsidiary, fointly controlied

No. Namea of the Company with indication of legal form Seat of the company Description of acivity enlity, associate), with description of direct |
i and indirect relations :

1. ENERGOPEP Spotka z cgraniczong odpowiedzialnoécia *) q_ Wierlnicza 169, 02-952 Warszawa rendering od services in the energy sector wmcuma_ma.

2 INTERPEP Spéka z cgraniczong odpowiedzialnosdcig ™) ul. Wierinicza 169, 02-952 Warszawa  rendering od services in the energy seclor Wm:umawme

i 3 SATURN MANAGEMENT Spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoseig *) ul. Wiertnicza 169, 02-852 Warszawa  rendering od services in the energy secior subsidiary
; _sw_.ncé Energia - Przedsiebiorstwo _u_.c%xnszo Ustugowe i Posrednictwa Q,amx Spotka z ; . o .
‘ a ograniczon odpowiedzialnoscia , Spolka komandylows 5 m=_. Wandy 16, 40-322 Katowice jrendering od services in the energy secter associate
¢ 5DIPOL Spatka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia™ %M_Hmwamo 6, 83-000 Pruszez ”_mam%m_ cd services in the energy sector lagsociate
6 Mars Management, 5.1 Ostrava, 28 ijna 270/854 kod 709 00 Financial, .moo:csg.“ ang organizational advisory services, wholesale activities, service Mmcum_ diary
o o ] : - and sales intermediary ;
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

reported as of 31.12.2004

‘Shares in affiliates ; N

L a I m

f No. I : indication of other sources of controifointly control/ total equity of _w_mm . mc:um.a share capital ?mmmmqmm .

| : Name of the Company with indication of legal form sqnifcantinfuance than stted i secton ) or k) | entity i Share capital amount) Reserve capita
1. ENERGOPEP Spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoseig *) no Qmﬁmm mmm -
N INTERPEP Spéika z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia *) no data 49 - -
m SATURN MANAGEMENT Spotka z ograniczona odpowiedzialnoscia *) no data 196 - -
p Mercury mzmﬂw‘_.m - Przedsiebiorstwe _uaa:xos:ocmw:moim i Posrednictwa Comax Spotka z no data 1600 ) )

cgraniczong odpowiedzialnoscig , Spotka woamaﬁosm "

5 DIPOL Spétka z agraniczong odpowiedzialnoscia®) ho data 75 75 ")
m Mars Management, s.r.o") no amﬁmm 28 28 JW )
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Polish Energy Pariners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005

Additional Notes and Explanations

{in thousand zlotys)

18.Inventory

31.12.2005

31122004

19.Short term receivables

______ 8
O] L. ...

32 439

1986, 1891

31122005 | 31.12.2004
2) from affiliates B, O
- frade receivables 17 15
- other 90 60
b) from other entities 35934 15038
- rade receivables 17 842 4 366
- tax and social security receivables 1007 413
- other, including: 16992 11159
finanacial lease 15 566 0
Total short term receivables, net 3037 16013
c) provisions for doubtful debt 509 751
Total short term receivables, gross 36 546 16 764
20.Short term financial assets
31.12.2005 31.12.2004
) 1319 -
Total short-term financiafassets 1319
21.0ther short term assets
| 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
a)accruedincome 2507 640
‘b) costreimbursement 185 -t
Total other shorttermassets L 2692 640
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Polish Energy Pariners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

22. Accrued income and deferred cost

d) short- te”?h%df’b‘r’oiects"‘
i) long- termofpro;ects

31.12.2005  31.12.
CaSh and cash equivalents R .40t 96900
Cash in hand and in bank 38082 19 552
' geposits and investmentfunds shares . 3519 17034
Total cash and cash equivalents T . ). 1] B—— 3% 586
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

Pursuant to the shareholders list of shareholders over 5% votes on
GSM dated December 23,
Sharehoider
No of shares Share in fotal | No of votes in ! Share in votes in
capital GSM GSM

Poiish
Enterprise 8 666 049 47 66% 8 666 049 47 66%
Fund L.P.
Polenergy i ) .
Investments | The shareholder did not register for the general sharehalders meeting on
B.V. December 23, 2005

The Company has been notified that the shareholders of the Company - Polish Enterprise Fund L.P.,
Polish Private Equity Fund |, and Polish Private Equity Fund Il (hereinafter referred to as the ,Funds”
sold 5,973,883 shares of the Company. The sales transactions took place on 14th February 2006
{400,000 shares were sold) and on the 16th of February 2006 (5,573,883 shares) and were settled on
17th February 2006. Before the sale the Funds held 8,942,163 shares of the Company representing
49.17% of votes at the Company's General Meeting and 49.17% of the Company's share capital. After
the sale the Funds hold 2,968,280 shares of the Company representing 2,968,280 votes at the
Company's General Meeting (16.32% of the total number of votes) and 16.32% of the Company's
share capital.

The Company has been nofified that the Company's shareholder - Polenergy Investmentis B.V.
{hereinafter referred to as "Polenergy") sold 2,338,117 shares of the Company. The sale transaction
was settled on 17th February 2006. Before the sale Polenergy held 3,489,871 shares of the Company
representing 19.24% of votes at the Company's General Meeting and 19.24% of the Company's share
capital. After the sale Polenergy holds 1,161,754 shares of the Company representing 1,161,754
votes at the Company's General Meeting (6.39% of the total number of votes) and 6.39 % of the
Company's share capital.

The Company has been notified that American Life and Reinsurance Company (hereinafter referred to
as "Alico"), acquired through AIG Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny {managed by AIG Powszechne
Towarzystwo Emerytalne) and AIG Asset Management (Poiska) S.A. (as part of commissioned foreign
securities portfolioc management) 1,455,603 shares of the Company. As a result, as at 17th February
20086, Alico holds the Company's shares representing 8.0045% of the Company's share capital and
1,455,603 votes at the Company's General Meeting of Shareholders (8.0045% of the total number of
votes). Before the said acquisition, Alico held 55,603 shares of the Company.

The Company has been notified that PZU Asset Management S.A. with its registered office in Warsaw
{hereinafter referred to as "PZU AM") purchased beyond organized trading 1,200,000 shares of the
Company. As a result, as at 17th February 2006, PZU AM held (as part of commissioned foreign
securities management portfoiio) the Company's shares representing 6.60% of the Company's share
capital and 1,200,000 votes at the Company's General Meeting of Shareholders (6.60% of the total
number of votes). Before the said acquisition, PZU AM did not hold the Company's shares.
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Additional Notes and Explanations

{(in thousand zlotys)

Consolitated balance sheet . Consolidated profit and loss account
Deferred tax 31.12.2005 31.12.2004 . 31.12.2005 m 31.12.2004
\Deferred tax liability y
... fixed assets 139 459
| receivables B 892
5 (43)
- 87 33
46 997 47 900 (803): 42 057
2420 1990
... Gross deferred tax liability 53 000: 50518 2482 44108,
{Deferred tax asset .
fixed assets . 139 (139)
cash 179 8
_receivables 3713 (207)
loans 8 a1
liabilities - 697 )
484 885
48 731 45 868 (1137)
loss for previous pericds - - -
......Gross deferred tax asset 51209: 51 051 158

Deferred tax expense
Net deferred tax asseb/liability
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Pclish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005

Additional Notes and Explanations

{in thousand zlotys)

26.Provisions

Long-term provisions

iggher provisions - recultivation

'Retirement and similar provisions

3422008 | 31122004

Cw T ke
2071

‘Total long-term provisions

Short-term provisions

Retirement and similar provisions 196 60
Other provisions 1406 1584
Total short-term provision 1602 s

Movements in other long-term and short-term provisions

Balance at the begining of period 4143 3781
creation of provisions 561 956
release of provisions @2 (528)
useof provisions {309} ‘ {65)

~movement provisions fo long-term provisions (83) 9)
movement provisions to short-term provisions B4 9

Balance at the end of peried 4123 4143

The balance of other short term provisions include among others provision for litigation with URE in the

amount of 731 thd. Zlotys.

27.1.ong term liabilities

i 31122005 | 31122004
a) from 1 to 3 years 42487 34413
b} from 3 to 5 years 48781} 33439
cloverSyears 142703, 137053
Long-term liabilities, Total 231951 210 905
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

 Raffeicen Bank |
Pelska SA

. Warszawa

‘- basic rate EURIBOR

EURC | 1-month plus mangin

215600 EUR -

- agreement on transfer fr collateral of receivatiles from insurance agreement

Pawer of attomey te dispese of the current account,

Pawer of atforey to dispose of the current accounts

- agreement with Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA refafing to resitration pledge on receivables due

repayment in
instalments, last
principal is paid
on 31.12.2021

- six registration pledges for Raiffeisen Bank Poiska SA

33,525 thousand EUR
from bank account,
- agreement with Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA relating te resitration pledge on receivables due 33 525 thousand EUR
from bank account,
- Registration Piedge an assets 33.520 thousand EUR
- submission to execution of the bormower 33.525 thousand EUR

_— . each in 4.269,3

- two registration pledges on fixed assets of DIPOL sp. z 0.0. For Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA thousand EUR,
- resifration pledge for Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA §.538,7 tys EUR

each in 4.269,3

thousand EUR,

- representation of PEP SA about submigsion o execution

- Submission to execution according to the Article 97 of the Banking Act as of August 29 1997
until August 30, 2009

- registration plegde agreement on shares in DIRPOI, sp. z v.0. Concluded between PEP SA and
Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA - vaiue of the pledge depends on the way of use but not more than

33.525 thousand EUR

- uarantee agreement between PEP SA and Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA. Guarantee granted
by PEP SA in the amount fotalling: 1.350.000 EURO remains ir force until July 31, 2007, up o
5.800.378 PL N remains in foroe £ the day which is six months from the date of statements

issued by EkaFundusz Foundation about final settiement of the grant.
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group

Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005

Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

| BREBankSA.

. Warszawa !

63.600 thousand EUR

194,325

| 47.640 thousand EUR

- basic rate EURIBOR

1-month plus margin

4,2

repayment in

: instaiments, fast
; principatis paid
i on 20122015

Agresment for securing assignment of all current and future claims

Agreement for pledge over shares in the Satum Management Sp. z 0.0, E@m_._m“ §=_ m_m ﬁﬁm

of PEP 8.4, Tights 90,000 thousand EUR
== iotal and each of the;
Pledge on PEP S.A. rights as the __B_Mma pariner. R Em m_._cma_ma. m:a PEP SA. mmzw agreements up o

>m$m:m_._ﬂ§5mmma_m§m83m u_m%m o...mwam_._xmono_.__._ﬂ Momm”:mw _.sﬁu._muasmﬂ mwmmmim_‘ mc.%aaocm;mmmcm”
for this account :

agreement um?amz _u_m_u m A. angd BRE Bank S.A. _.mm Eﬁ 1o securing assignment - Satum
project

Agreement for pledge over assets incorporaled in the company’s enterprise - value of the u_mn_nm

depends on the way of its consumption bt not mare than ! £0.800 thousand ELUR:
>mam=6=m betwoen SM sp. kom. And BRE a_m”sm to Registration Pledge on the rights to bak
account acess together with power of attomey up to the amount of; : 90.00 thousand m%m
Submissi ion to BRE Bank S.A. .
Agreel ‘security, covering all curvent and fulie receivables up o the amount | :

0 a_. 9 " i 90.800 thousand EUR!

Guerantees assignment Agreement for ansfer of rights and clainss from granled by the business|
partner

Agreement for security transfer of file to BRE Bank SA of the ownership of the tangible fixed

assets purchased from Frantschach Swiecie based on the Purchase / Sale Agreement together

‘with all the relating rights from guarantees and wamanties, including those granted by the
WEEEE

>uam=ﬁa on morigage on perpetual usufruct and onwership of the buildings for BRE Bank i i

_soznmm_m for BRE and Kreditanstalt fur Wiederauibas: ir the amount of amounting to EUR 45
:millicn each.

90.000 thousand EUR .

M>mamam_.m on cession of fights from General Agreement up to the amounts resulting from debt
(outstanding

-Agreement on cessicn of rights from agreements with Frantschach, Construction agreement and
‘signficant agreements with construction companies, insurance agreements up o the amounts .
sresulting from debt outstanding

\Registration Pledge on the rights of SM Sp. z 0.0. As unlimited partner of Satum Management

m_._maﬂmm% Famtschach Swiecie S.A. up to the amount being minimum of : amount of three

5p.z 0.0 | Wapdinicy, spdtka komandytowe together with bank transfer - value of the pledge 90.000 thousand EUR
dependant on the way to use the pledge but no more than

months costs of debt 3.06C thousand PLN
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Additional Notes and Explanations

{in thousand zlotys)

29, Short term liabilities

a) loans and bank credits
b} frade payables

- other financiai liabilities

es, customs and social security liabilites . 108 1212

- payroll iabilifies
- Special Funds
- other financial liabilities

Totalshortterm iabiies
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Additional Notes and Explanations
(in thousand zlotys)

reported a5 of 31.12.2004 )
Short term liabilities from loans and credits I B ”
mzmam of the Ooauma,. .1_9 inilcation Q Seat . ,J.W_K.m_w_,\.ﬁ_.m% limit as in the agreement Amount of _om:__oaq._.ﬂ.ﬁ.ﬁumx. Condition of inferest . Repayment dale Colateral
: usand zioty | cuirency thousand Zlety:  curency : o e
BRE Bank $.A. Warszawa 11.851 PLN 1.310 PLN {leng term debt (amount payable within one year Prasented in long-term liabilities note
BRE Bark S.A. Warszawa 17.332 PLN 933 PLN “ long ferm debt (amount payable within one year Presented in loag-lerm liabilies acte
! Security assignment of rights of the borrower from the Project cocumentation
other than Difigent Execution Guarantess, Warmanties and Obligations of the
Parent Companies
wom_.am_._ Guarantes Assignment Agreement of the borrower’s rights to Giligent
: ! ‘Executi \ nfies and Obligations of the Parent Compani
m  squal amountin WIBOR 1-month + bank tion Guarantees, Warra gations of the Parent Companies
BRE BANK Do Warszawa (o aeaw PR overdraft - - . to 31.03.2005 SR
; - ! margin In blance bill of exchange issued by the borower together with the bill of

exchange decfaration of the borower

Power of attomey for the Bank to dispose of all o the Bank accounts of the
! : orrower held in Bark ;

| | {Submission fo execution according to the Arlicle 97 of the Banking Act as of

“ _ihugust 29 1997 untl March 31, 2006

Staternent of the appropriate tax office, presented on borrower's
request, including an obligation to return the VAT on VAT Account,
and in case of not cbtaining such statement a staterment of the
barrower including assurance of returning VAT on VAT account or, |
if obtaining such statements would not be possible, an obligation

of the borrower to make transfers of the amounts acquired as VAT
treturn on VAT account, according to the bank accounts agreement

: ; . ; WIBOR 1-month -+ bank Security assignment of rights of the borrower from the Project
BRE BANK Emawmi.m“mmoc Qmmcm <>q. wmo___@_ “ M_mm ; »owaﬂmmoom nwgcamznmn_czn&._ww&._mm._ mu__wmm:n mxmﬁr_mnvﬂ Qﬂmﬂmm._nmmw_

margin
Warranties and Obligations of the Parent Companies

German Guarantee Assignment Agreement of the borrower's
rights to Diligent Execution Guarantees, Warranties ang
Obligations of the Parent Companies e :
Power of attorney for BRE Bank fo dispose of all of the bank accounts of the
borrower held in bank

-Submission 1o execution according 10 the Aricie 97 of the Banking Act as of
m>ammm~ 28 1997 until March 31, 2008,

BRE BANK Warszawa | equal amountin investment 2902 tys. EUR
i PLNE3600t. © 1183 long fermn debt (amour payable within one year time)

EUR
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

31.Accrued cost and deferred income

31422005 | 31.12.2004

ﬁLong-term accruals and deferred income

34422005 | 31122004 |

T A
Cotet 10500

oassodates e 00 .58
0) court cases S — 304
Tota! contingent li habﬂlt:es to afﬁhates 61315 49710

- to subsidiaries

The detailed description of contingent liabilities is presented in the Note 47 of the add!tional Notes and
Explanations of the consolidated financial statement.
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005

Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand ziotys)

34.Sales revenue

revenues from conculifing projecis '
revenues from sales of over standard quahty an d guafa e of de
revenues from leasing and operating of the leased assets

saleofgoods

35.Costs by kind

Tota; net revenues fmm sa|es onOOds e e e e 0 5

3112.2005 | 31.12.2004
834 1123
23218, 25

4088 1866
32540 21581

b) materia and energy e

¢) external services

d) taxes and fees

e) payroll, including:

management options e e e e s

) social security and payroli related charges

9) other costs by kind

‘Total costs by kind

Valie of scld qo0ds and SN (positlve amount) U S

Change in value of work in progress and finished goods

Cost of asset construction for own purposes (negative amount)

Selling costs (negative amount) - -
General and administration costs (negatwe amount) {13 152) (11 898)
Cost of goods sold 35043 31966
36.Other operating income
31.12.2005 31.12.2004
a) reversal of impairment wriie-downs and release gf'g_roﬁisibﬁs' 500 9327
__- provisions for doubtiul debt 283 2072
ampairment write-downs of fixed assels - 5546
_ -otherwrite-offs 27 4709
b) other, including; 856 235,
 received penalties and compensation 424 217
. Tother, M7 18
profit from sales of nonfi nancnal fixed assets 15
Total other operating income 1356 9982
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Polish Energy Pariners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005

Additional Notes and Explanations

(in thousand zlotys)

37 Other operating costs

. 31.42.2005 |

31.12.2004
627 .. 1163
L |
fix 432 868
-other revaluatlons 68
b) other, mcludmg; 49
~ -costs of Warsaw Stock Exchange entry
. -other revaluations ‘ sl
loss from sales of nonfinancial fixed assels - 4
Total other operating expense ! 1078, 1212
38 Financial income
} 31122005 | 31.12.2004
a) financial income from dividends and share in profit B 118
b) due from loans granted Ll 113
c) other interest - leasing - 10256 12 257
‘ interest due from lease of assets 2100 2823
d) reversal of provision for doubtful debt 107
€} gain on securities trade 5261 910
f) other financialincome 188 250
Financial income, total 11959 13530
39 Financial costs
31.12.2005 | 31.12.2004
a) financial costs from interest 9623 10930
b) foreignexchange 2519 5858
-unrealised 3141 6043
qealised b (562} (185)
¢) increase of revaluation prov&s:on o 52 2018
d) provisons and other costs od credits 266 237
&) other financial costs - - 9% 96,
Total financiaicosts 2616 19139
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40 Current income tax

1. Consalidaled gross bfér'"‘r"{'lé”s”s)"ﬁ - f o _' )
Cunsohdatzon adjustements

31422004

769)

- tax depreciation

e $3583)

_(38754)

est on lpans {159)

- interest on investment 144, 255)
- dividends from limited liabilities companies ey

- Telease of provisions @7 (o 827)

| _-feceived grants e e (79) (200)

.- seftlement of temporary differences from previous years e 932 168,

__-fepayment of principal in financial lease payment 11789 3 384

- seftlement of revenues included in prior period (634 1582

. -otherincome (4 (115)

b) costs 20298 48 221

- undocumented costs 42 Y

- costs not related fo revenues A A

- costs from other period 8 21

_-paymentstoPFRON 44 .

_~ payment for non obligatory societies 2 s

_-expenseforownersandmembers 1192 123

- insurance policy of managementboard 2 9

- accounting depreciation 2723 2734

" costs . Iquidation 6086

- costs - capital par{ of lease (220} (82)
- costs - revaluation of cash /113 38 212
- costs - reserves 293 1889
- costs - valuation of receivables 408 308
- COsts - revaluattion of settlem: (60) -
- costs - salaries paid in due date (38)
- costs - tax deductible from sales of heat and electricity 2655
- costs -loans revaluation 1270,
- osts - Iosses 398 -
- costs - provisiosn for bonuses 415 264
- costs - provisiosn for fixed assets 432 .8o8
- costs - inferest paid (808) {840)
- coss - revaluation write offs 5% 1998
- costs - financial capltalazed in assets Ieased in ﬁnam:lal lease a2 7113
19 405
(668) (877)
1164
4. Tax Basis before tax loss from previous years 4683 10151,
4a.Tax loss settiement from previous years (negative number) - {4 184)
Donations 10 -
dbTaxbasisaftertaxloss 4883 5967
5.Income fax at current tax rate 19% 19%. 19%
6.Increase, lowering, tax deductions 30 T
7.Current income 1ax expense in the declarahon fotax authonty ____________ 860 1133
8.Income tax at effective tax rate 19% (2004: 19%) 3572 5245
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Currentincome taxexpense 860 1133
Chnage in deferred tax balance L. 234 1055

Income tex reported in profit and lossaccount 3184 2188
e 31.12.2005 © 31.12.2004

Revenue permanentnottaxed 3 38
‘Costs permanently not tax deductible e .35 1081
Income tax, at effective tax rate 19% (2004: 19%) 5245

41 Cash flows — explanatory notes

Cash flows from operation activity - other adjustements

;-management options 1082 -
-sale of assets under cosntruction ... 2078 -

Impairment wrte down 61
Totalotheradiustements " 3iie @1m)

Other investment inflows

2005 2004

Repayment of principal and interest from financial
lease

22213 15 160:

Other investment cutilows

B 2005 2004
Qutflows for leased fixed assets 17 418 33471
Total S 17418, 334m

restricted cash e
2005 2004
‘Social fund 39 20
Total S0 838

* Restriction results from bank loan areement for project Satumn and consitutes
cotlateral of equity for the project

42 Financial Risk Management — goals and rules
Financial instruments issued or possessed by the Group can cause — on a standalone or combined
basis — one or several classes of significant risk.

The main financial instruments the Group uses comprise bank loans, financial lease contracts with buy
back option, cash and short term deposits. The main goal of these instruments is to supply sufficient
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amounts of cash for Group operations. The Group has also other financial instruments such like trade
receivables and liabilities which arise as a result of normal business operations.

The main classes of risk resulting from financial instruments include interest rate risk, currency risk
and credit risk. The Management of the company verifies and reconciles the rules of each class risk
management — these rules are discussed in an abbreviated form below. The Group also monitors the
market price risk relating to all of its financial instruments.

421 Interest Rate Risk

The exposure of Group to the risk of changes in interest rates refers mainly to fong term financial
liahilities.

The Group manages the interest costs by using the variable interest instruments. The Group does not
apply any hedging using derivative financial instrumenis.

42.2 Currency Risk

The currency risk refers mainly to the changes in EUR foreign exchange rate in relation to the open
asset currency position in the financial lease transaction. This risk is described in detail in Note 45
relating to leases. The position is not hedged in order to eliminate the exchange rate volatility.

42.3 Credit Risk

The Group concludes contracts only with renowned companies with stable financial position. All clients
who would like to have extended credit line are subject to detailed verification. Moreover due to instant
monitoring of receivables balances the Group is only slightly exposed to the overdue receivables
balance risk.

In relation to other financial assets of the Group, cash and cash equivalents and assets available for
sale the credit risk for the Group arises when the counterparty is not able to pay its obligations and the
maximum exposure to such risk is equal to the carrying value of such instruments. The Group
concludes such financial instruments contracts only with renowned financial institutions.

There is no significant credit risk concentration in the Group.

43 [Information on financial instruments

43.1 Presentation of financial instruments - changes in value of financial
instruments by category

As of December 31, 2005 the Capital Group PEP had the following financial instruments classified into
the following groups (in thousand zlotys).
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Cash valont Fair value
ash equivalenis :
(bonds, treasury Originating loans Available for thrgrl.:gr;ozrsoﬂt

bills, open end and receivables sale ( shares)

funds)

Opening Balance 17.034 3.036 1.009 -
Increase, including:: 25 354 2403 25 1.319*
Purchase of treasury bilis 25 959 } . 1319
and bonds
Loans granted - 2.280 - -
interest 95 123 - -
Purchase of shares - - 25 -
Decrease, including: 38.869 - a0 -
Sale of treasury bills and
bonds 38.869 - - -
Interest reclassification - - - -
Shares return - - 80 -
Revaluation - - - -
Closing Balance 3519 5.439 954 1.319
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As of December 31, 2004 the Capital Group PEP had the following financial instruments classified into
the following groups (in thousand zlotys):

Cash equivalents Originati .
> riginating loans and | Available for sale
(bonds, treasury bills, ; recei?labies shares) (
open end funds)
Cpening Balance 7.560 B 140
Increase, including:: 148.409 3.036 918
Purchase of treasury bills and
bonds 148.094 - -
Loans granted - 2.923 -
interest 315 113
Purchase of shares - - 918
Decrease, including: 138.935 - 49
Revaluation 49
Sale of treasury bills and bonds 138.935 - -
Closing Balance 17.034 3.036 1.009

The value of available for sale financial instruments consists of shares in affiliates. These shares are
not listed on any active market so their fair value can not be reliably measured. Due to this fact the
shares are recognized in the balance sheet at cost.

The detaited description of valuation methads of financial instruments in discussed in Note 6.25 in the
Notes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements,

44 The characteristics of financial instruments

a) Fair value through profit and loss financial assets

As of the balance sheet date the Group had the following financial assets through profit and loss:

1,248 bonds with face value of 1,248 thousand zlotys — these bonds were purchased by Saturn
Management Sp. z 0.0. | Wspoinicy, Spotka Komandytowa from BRE Bank on August 12, 2005 for the
amount of 1,299 thousand zlotys. The maturity of these bonds is June 24, 2008.

Unrealized gains from valuation of these bonds as of the balance sheet date amount to 20 thousand
zlotys.

As of the balance sheet date the Company had the following shares in investrment funds:

- Gérnoslaskie Towarzystwo Funduszy Inwestycyjnych S.A.
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10,779 units purchased on June 8, 2005 for the amount of 1,654 thousand zlotys,

Unrealized gains due from increase in value of these units in GTFI S.A. amount to 26 thousand zlotys
as of balance sheet date,

- in ING Towarzystwie Funduszy Inwestycyjnych S.A.

560 units purchased on June 8, 2005 for the amount of 100 thousand zlotys,

98,444 units purchased on June 16, 2005 for the amount of 1,700 thousand ziotys,

Unrealized gains due from increase in value of these units in ING Towarzysiwie Funduszy
Inwestycyjnych S.A. amount to 39 thousand zlotys as of balance sheet date,

b) L.oans granted and receivables

The parent company granted the following loans to its affiliates:

1.

To the company Merkury Energia ~ Przedsigbiorsiwo Produkcyjno-Ustugowe i
Posrednictwa Comax Spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialno$cig, spétka komandytowa:

The loan agreement was signed on June 25, 2004 for the amount of 2,750 thousand zlotys. The
borrower is obliged to repay the loan in two eguail installments on March 31, 2010 and October 31,
2010.

The loan agreement was signed on September 30, 2005 for the amount of 700 thousand zlotys.
The borrower is obliged to repay the loan in two egual instaliments on December 31, 2010 and
May 31, 2011.

The loan agreement was signed on November 4, 2005 for the amount of 1,000 thousand ziotys.
The borrower is obliged to repay the loan in two equal installments on December 31, 2010 and
May 31, 2011.

The loan agreement was signed on December 27, 2005 for the amount of 580 thousand zlotys.
The borrower is obliged to repay the loan in two equal installments on December 31, 2010 and
May 31, 2011,

The borrower uses the loan to finance and refinance payments to domestic and foreign
subcontractors including these payments which result from investment needs to complete the
signed agreements i.e. with Zaktady Koksownicze ,\Watbrzych” S.A.

Interest is calculated on monthly basis. The interest on the loan amounts to 10%.

The interest due as of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 amounted to 288 thousand
zlotys and 110 thousand zlotys.

The table below presents the loans in the specific periods:
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Reported as at December 31, 2005

Total
fimit of
the loan
.| Balance of
Date of |accordin Balance of Date of End of grace
Borrower agreement| g to the the Z?SUM interest due | repayment Interest period Collateral
agreeme
nt {thd.
ziotys)
Mercury Energia- Interest due from
Pr;(:g;:‘itgq;sct;vo the day of loan
Usk Y drawing till the day
; Pozrgg?i‘::gna of issuing of first No
25.06.2004| 2.750 2750 385 | 31.10.2010 fixed, 10% |  Invoice for | collateral
E%f;;xnigg":; ? lelectricity delivered
s o by the borrower will
Odpowiedzialnoécia be capitalized
Spotka
komandytowa
Mercury Energia- Interest due from
Prgc:ﬁ:ﬁi;lq;s;\lmo the day of loan
Ut vi drawing till the day
i Po;‘;gﬁ‘i,:wa of issuing of first No
. 09, 7 15 | 31.05.2011! fi Ed, 10% invoice for coliateral
g%f;;xnigg:: 30.09.2005 700 oo |x ’ electricity delivered
LS - by the borrower will
Odpowiedzialnoscial be capitalized
Spdika
komandytowa
Mercury Energia- Interest due from
P s
r;?g;'}?g?’::}m thel day' of loan
Ust ¥l drawing till the day
i Pozr:gz}zﬁma of issuing of first No
A 0 invoice for cotlateral
S%r;ra&iiggf:: 4.11.2005 1.000 1000 31.05.2011 ﬁxed, 10% electricity delivered
s o by the borrower will
Odpowiedzialnoscia be capitalized
Spétka
komandytowa
Mercury Energia- Interest due from
P%?gg;i@?;syo the day of loan
Usi vl drawing fill the day
i Pozr:gz‘;:tewa of issuing of first No
N 12, 31.05.2011| fixed, 10% invoice for collateral
S%r;;xnigg*:: 27.12.2006 580 580 |x ’ electricity delivered
S g by the borrower will
[Odpowiedzialnoscia be capitalized
Spokka
komandytowa
TOTAL 5.030 5.030 409
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Reported as at December 31, 2004

Total
limit of
the [oan
.| Balance of
Borrower Date of |accordin the amount _Ba!ance of | Date of Interest End of_ grace [Collatera
agreement| g to the due interest due |repayment period i
agreeme
nt {thd.
zlotys)
Mercury Energia-
Przedsiebiorstwo
Produkcyjno- Interest calculated
Uslugowe tilt March 205 will
i Posrednictwa be capitalized, and| N°
Comax Spélka |25.06.2004|  2.750 2.750 110 31.10.2010 fixed, 10% |  theinterest  |Collateral
Z ograniczong repayment from
odpowiedzialnoscia April 2005 will be
on monthly basis
Spdlka
komandytowa
After starting No
Dipol Spotka z 0.0.|20.10.2004 306 173 3 fixed, 9,5% | Sconomic activity | collateral
which is expected
in Aprit 2006
2.92
TOTAL 3 13
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c¢) Interest on loans granted

In the year ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 the Group did not realize revenue from
loans granted. In the profit and loss account the interest accrued was incurred for the year 2005 and

2004 respectively.

interest realized

Unrealized due within

Total interest

Tl 3 3-12 .
Year ended 31.12.2005 months months 1-5years > S years | Total unrealized
Interest on long term
financial receivables A 4 - 299 209 299
from affiliates
[Fotal J 4 - 299 299 299
Interest realized Unrealized due within Total interest
TilE 3 312 Year ended .
Year ended 31.12.2004 months | months | 31.12.2005 Till 3 months | 3-12 months
interest on long term
financial receivables J ] . 110 110 110
from affiliates
Total i E - 110 110 110

d) financial assets available for sale

Cn December 20, 2005 the Parent Company purchased 50% shares in Notos Sp. z 0.0. in the amount

of 25 thousand zlotys.

45 Interest Rate Risk

The carrying value of financial instruments bearing the interest rate risk is presented in the table below

in the aging breakdown.

Year ended December 31, 2005

Variable interest rate

Cash

Bank loans amounting 39,812

thousands ziotys

Bank loans in EURO amounting
229,382 thousands zlotys

<fyear

24 367
4948
15 461

1-2
years

3327
16 848

2-3 3-4
years years
3682 3484

18612 20062

4-5 >5 years Total
years
24 367
2237 5300 29 978
21636 136763 229 382
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Fixed interest rate
<1year
Cash assets 17,263
Loans granted -
Year ended December 31, 2004
Variable interest rate
<fyear
Cash 36 603
Bank loans amounting 20,989
thousands zlotys 4 408
Bank loans in EURO amounting
206,162 thousands zlotys 11 837
Fixed interest rate
<1year

Cash assets -
Loans granted -

1-2

years

1-2
years

2503
14 064

1-2
years

176

2-3

years

2-3
years

2797
15049

2-3
years

34
years

3-4
years

3152
16 104

34
years

4-5
years

3,136

4-5
years

2954

17 229

4-5
years

>5 Total
years
- 17,263
2,302 5,438
>5 years Total
- 36 603
5174 20 989
131 879 206 162
>5 Total
years
2,860 3,036

The interest on variable interest financial instruments is reviewed in periods shorter than one year.
Other Group’s financial instruments which were not presented in the above tables are not subject to
interest and therefore are not subject to interest rate risk.

46 Capital Group as lessor

46.1 Reconciliation of gross investment lease as at the balance sh

value of minimum lease payments as at the balance sheet date:

eet date with the present

in PLN , ]
as of 31.12.2005 in

Exchange rate PLN/EUR 3.8598 total to 1 year from 1 to 5 years | over 5 years
Gross investment lease 311 506 20 949 106734 184 823
Net lease investment 247 147 15 597 79 946 151 604
Minimum lease payments

311 505 20 948 105 734 184 823
Unrealized financial revenues 64 359 5352 25788 33219
Unguaranteed residual accruing to the lessor
Conditional lease payments

85 588 7738 26 555 51285

Conditional lease payments recognized in the profit and loss account for the period January 1, 2005 ~
December 31, 2005 amounted to 9,712 thousands zlotys.
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inPLN as of 31.12.2005 in

Exchange rate PLN/EUR 4.079 total fo 1 year from 110 5 years | over 5 years
Gross investment iease 338 249 18 542 92 575 227 132
Net lease investment 254 650 11 961 65 747 172 842
Minimum lease payments 338 249 18 542 92 575 227 132
Unrealized financial revenues 83 599 6 582 22 827 54 189

Unguaranteed residual accruing to the lessor

Total provisions for doubtful debts resutting
form minimum lease payments

Conditional lease payments 117 841 7893 27 463 82 484

Conditional lease payments recognized in the profit and loss account for the period January 1, 2004 —
December 31, 2004 amounted to 10,495 thousands zlotys.

46.2 Description of risks related to the financial lease transaction:

Market Risks

a/ foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risk of the financial lease transaction relates only to this part of the investment
which was financed through own equity of the lessor. The target financing structure is 87% loans 13%
equity. The above results from the financing of lease through bank loan denominated in EURO which
is the settlement currency of the transaction.

b/ fair value risk related to the interest rafe

The mechanism of the lease fransaction hedges the lessor against the impact of interest rate volatility.

¢/ price risk

The price risk is nonexistent in this transaction.

Credit Risk

The credit risk related to this transaction is refated to the credit risk of Mondi Packaging Paper Swiecie
(,MOND/”). MONDI is large and stable listed company so the credit risk is being evaluated at low level.
Liquidity risk (financing)

Liquidity risk related to this transaction is related to MONDI liquidity risk. MONDI is large and stable
listed company so the liquidity risk is being evaluated at low level.
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Cash flow risk related to the interest rate

The mechanism of the lease transaction hedges the lessor against the impact of interest rate volatility.

Description of key points in the lease agreements:

On April 29th 2002, MONDI, SM and the lssuer concluded a general agreement (amended by Annex
No. 1 of December 15th 2004), governing the parties’ cooperation on optimizing the operation and
financial aspects of MONDI's activities, including the reduction of energy expenses. Moreover, the
following specific agreements were concluded: agreement for sale and lease back of the Saturn CHP
Plant by MONDI; agreement for execution of an investment and modernization programme with SM’s
assistance, and 20-year agreement for operation of the Saturn CHP Plant by SM. The general
agreement establishes the following economic objectives:

- Financing and construction of a new CFB by SM on the premises of the Saturn CHP Plant {the
CFB has been successfully constructed and handed over), as well as execution by SM of the Facility
Upgrading Programme, and enhancing the Facility's operational efficiency to reduce electricity and
heat expenses over the next 20 years,

- Sharing of profits and risks related to the operation and maintenance of the Facility and
ensuring energy security for MONDI through failure-free and continuous generation of electricity and
heat, with agreed volumes and parameters,

- Improvement of the environmental protection conditions through the use of the bio fuels
produced by MONDI.

Energy Alliance

The parties’ economic cooperation is based on the Energy Alliance, understood as the concept which
assumes close links between the objectives and resuits of SM's activities as the Facility operator and
the investor under the investment and modernization programme, and the objectives and resuits of
MONDI as the energy generator who uses this energy, where one party cannot draw profits at the
expense of the other party, and their cooperation must develop harmoniously regardiess of the market
conditions, ensuring long-term business security and economic profit.

Subject of the Agreement is lease on the land real estate situated in Swiecie, comprising fots Nos.
105/62, 105/63, 105/64, 105/65, 105/68, 105/69, total area 6.8173 hectares, under the right of
perpetual usufruct held by SM, all buildings and constructions constituting components of the real
estate classified as fixed assets and simultaneously as separate real properties, other fixed assels
and items of property specified in the appendix to the agreement (“the Facility”).

In accordance with the provisions of the agreement FS will use the Facility for production of electricity
and heat on its own behalf and on its own account. The agreement obligates FS to pay a lease rent to
SM. The agreement was concluded for the period of 20 years commencing from the date of the
agreement, and may be extended for another 5 years. Liability of the parties for non-performance or
improper performance of obligations stipulated by the agreement caused by events amounting to
Force Majeure has been excluded.

A7 Off balance sheet items, in particular contingent liabilities, including
guarantees granted by the parent company

a) Contingent liabilities
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sS4

a)guaranteesgranted et e

b) other (due from limited liability sum in LLP): 39 310

.- to subsidiaries 38 650
-loassociates 660
cjcourtcases 304
Total contingent liabilities to affiliates 61315 B

Guarantees granted:

PEP SA issued a guarantee for BRE BANK SA with seat in Warsaw. The guarantee issued amounts
to 10.500.000 PLN and secures the liability of "Mercury Energia - Przedsiebiorstwo Produkcyjno-
Ustugowe i Posrednictwa COMAX Spoétka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig" Spatka komandytowa to
BRE BANK SA which results from bank loan in the amount of 9.000.000 PLN. The liability of PEP SA
ceases within the period of 2 years started from completion of Mercury project but not later than June
30, 2007. PEP SA did not receive any guarantee fee. PEP S.A. is a 50% shareholder in "Mercury
Energia - Przedsigbiorstwo Produkcyjno-Ustugowe i Poérednictwa COMAX Spdlka z ograniczong
odpowiedzialnoscig” Spotka kormandytowa.

On November 23, 2005 PEP SA concluded with Raiffeisen Bank Polska with its registered office in
Warsaw guarantee agreement. Pursuant to the guarantee agreement PEP granted to Raiffeisen Bank
Polska guarantee which relates fo the loan agreement concluded between Dipol Sp. Z 0.0. as
borrower and Raiffeisen Bank Polska as lender. The guarantee granted by PEP in the amount of up to
1,350,000 EURQ can be exercised till July 31, 2007 and in the amount of up to 5,900,378 PLN can be
exercised till the day which is six months from the date of statements issued by EkoFundusz
Foundation about final settlement of the grant.

PEP SA did not receive any reimbursement for the guarantee granting. PEP SA is 100% owner of
Dipol Sp. £ o.0.

Moreover, the collateral for bank loans comprises additional contingent liability described below.

In 1998 the Parent Company drew a long-term credit in BRE Bank S.A. in amount of PLN 11,850.0
thousand. The final repayment date is in July 2009,

The collaterat for the credit is:
a) Mortgage amounting to PLN 600.0 thousand,

b) Own bill of exchange,

c) Registration Pledge— its value according to the base agreement equals USD 1,142.0
thousand,

d) Registration Pledge— its value according to the base agreement equals PLN 5,300 thousand,

e) Claims Security Assignment relating to the project.

The interest is based on WIBOR 1 month plus bank margin.

The liability outstanding as at December 31, 2005 relating to the abovementioned credit agreement
amounts to PLN 6,311 thousand. According to the credit repayment schedule the amount of PLN
1,310 thousand was repaid in period from January 1, 2005 to December 31, 2005.

In December 1889 the Parent Company drew a long term credit for the purpose of building the Polar
heat and power generating plant which amounted to PLN 17 332.0 thousand.

The final repayment date is in June 2012.
The collateral for the credit is;
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a) Power of attorney to dispose of the current account and debt servicing account in BRE Bank
SA,
b) Agreement for security assignment (applying to the Polar investment),

c) Registration Pledge,

d) Mortgage securing an existing or future claim up to the amount of PLN 17,332.0 thousand set
up on the real estate belonging to Polar S.A. in Wroctaw until the day of purchase of this real
estate from Polar SA by the borrower.

The interest is calculated based on the WIBOR plus margin, which is calculated based on the financial
ration of the Company.

Debt outstanding as at December 31, 2005 resulting from this credit agreement amounts to PLN
10,269 thousand. According to the credit repayment schedule the amount of PLN 933 thousand was
repaid in period from January 1, 2005 to December 31, 2005

On April 10, 2002 BRE Bank S.A. granted to the Subsidiary an investment credit up to the amount of
€74,600.0 thousand intended for financing the SATURN and JUPITER project costs.

The credit balance as at December 31, 2005 amounted to 59,368 thousand EUR. interest accrued as
of the balance sheet date amounted to 60 thousand EUR. The valuation was made based on the NBP
average exchange rate. The bank loan amounts to 229,149 thousand zlotys and the accrued interest
233 thousand zlotys.

The collateral for the credit is:

a) Power of attorney to dispose of the current account and debt servicing account in BRE Bank
S A

by  Agreement with BRE Bank about current account relating to project Saturn and Jupiter,

c) Registration Pledge on shares in Saturn Management Sp. z 0.0. together with transfer of PEP
S A. rights,

d)  Agreement between PEP S.A. and BRE relating to the Registration Pledge on bank transfer
basis,

e) Pledge on PEP S.A. rights as the limited partner of the Subsidiary and PEP S.A. rights,

j] Agreement between SM sp. kom. and BRE relating to Registration Pledge on the rights to bank
account access together with power of attorney,

g) Submission to execution,

h)  Power of attorney for BRE Bank to dispose of all of the bank accounts of the borrower held in
bank,

1) Agreement between PEP S.A. and BRE Bank S.A. relating to securing assignment - Saturn
project,

i) Agreement for pledge over assets incorporated in the company’s enterprise

ky  Agreement on transfer for security, covering all current and future receivables up to the
maximum amount of EUR 90 million ,

) Agreement for security transfer of title to BRE Bank SA of the ownership of the tangible fixed
assets purchased from MONDI based on the Purchase / Sale Agreement together with aii the
relating rights from guarantees and warranties, including those granted by the producer,

m) Agreement on mortgage on perpetual usufruct and ownership of the buildings for BRE Bank,

n)  Mortgage for BRE and Kreditanstalt fur Wiederaufbau in the amount of amounting to EUR 45
mitlion each,
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0)  Agreement on cession of rights from General Agreement up to the amounts due to the banks
from Credit Agreements (Investment, VAT and overdraft),

p)  Agreement on cession of rights from Construction Agreement, other significant construction
agreements and Insurance Agreements up to the amounis due to the banks from Credit
Agreements (Investment, VAT and overdraft),

q)  Agreement on cession of rights from agreements with MONDI, Construction agreement and
significant agreements with construction companies, insurance agreements up io the amounts
resulting from debt outstanding,

r) Guarantee of MONDI up to the amount being minimum of. amount of three months costs of debt
and 3,000 thousand zlotys.

in 2005 BRE Bank S.A. granted to subsidiary Saturn Management Sp. z 0.0. | Wspdlnicy, Spdtka
komandytowa VAT facility up to the amount of 9,498 thousand zlotys, to finance the costs of project
Saturn and Jupiter.

As of December 31, 2005 the cutstanding debt amounted to 2,171 thousand zlotys. Interest accrued
as of the balance sheet date amounted fo 3 thousand zlotys.

The collateral for the credit is:

a) Statement of the appropriate tax office, presented on borrower's request, including an
obligation to return the VAT on VAT Account, and in case of not obtaining such statement a
statement of the borrower including assurance of returning VAT on VAT account or, if
obtaining such statements would not be possible, an obligation of the borrower o make
transfers of the amounts acquired as VAT return on VAT account, according to the bank
accounts agreement,

b) Security assignment of rights of the borrower from the Project documentation other than
Diligent Execution Guaraniees, Warranties and Obligations of the Parent Companies,

c) German Guarantee Assignment Agreement of the borrower's rights to Diligent Execution
Guarantees, Warranties and Obligations of the Parent Companies,

d) Power of attorney for BRE Bank to dispose of all of the bank accounts of the borrower held in
bank,

e) Submission to execution according to the Article 97 of the Banking Act as of August 29 1997
until March 31, 2007.

f) cession of rights pertaining to PEP from Mondi Packaging Paper Swiecie S.A. from General
Agreement

in 2004 BRE Bank S.A. granted to subsidiary Saturn Management Sp. z 0.0. i Wspdlnicy, Spétka
komandytowa overdraft facility up to the amount of 453 thousand zlotys, to finance current working
capital. Till December 31, 2005 the loan was not used.

On November 22, 2005 PEAKO SA bank granted to the parent company a long term investment bank
loan for financing and refinancing of purchase and modernization of energy assets comprising EC
Jeziorna which were purchased from Metsa Tissue.

Final repayment date — August 2015.
The collateral for this bank loan are;
a)  Own bill of exchange issued by the borrower

b) Power of attorney for BRE Bank to dispose of the bank accounts of the borrower and Energopep
Sp. z 0.0. EC Jeziorma Sp. Komandytowa held in PEAKO SA bank,

c)  cession of receivables related to the agreements for heat and electricity deliveries concluded
between Energopep Sp. z 0.0. EC Jeziorna Sp.Komandytowa, a Metsa Tissue S.A., Ecotex
Polska Sp. z 0.0., Konstans Sp. z ¢.0.
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d) Registration Pledge up fo the amount of on assets of EC Jeziorna which are used to generate
and deliveries of electricity and heat together with cession of insurance policy up to the amount
of 1,113 thousand PLN

e) mortgage in the amount of 4,906 thousand PLN
f) submission to execution and submission to execution to hand over the pledged assets

The interest is based on WIBOR 1 month plus bank margin.

The liability outstanding as at December 31, 2005 relating o the abovementioned credit agreement
amounts to PLN 4,864 thousand.

On November 23, 2005 Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA granted to the subsidiary Dipo! Sp. z 0.0. a long
term investment bank loan for financing of construction of 22MW wind farm located near Puck. The
loan amount is 21,600 thousand PLN.

Finat repayment date — December 2021.

The coliaterat for this bank loan are:

a)  agreement on transfer of any compensation received from insurance agreement,
b) power of attorney to dispose of the current account,

¢}  power of attorney to dispose of the current accounts,

d) agreement with Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA relating to registration pledge on receivables due
from bank account,

e) agreement with Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA relating to registration pledge on receivables due
from bank accounts,

f) registration pledge on assets,
g) registration pledge agreement on shares in DIPOL sp. z 0.0,
h}  submission to execution of the borrower

i) two registration pledges on fixed assets of DIPOL sp. z o.0. For Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA
each in 4.269,3 thousand EUR,

The interest is based on EURIBOR 1 month plus bank margin.

As of December 31, 2005 the subsidiary did not draw the loan. Pursuant to the repayment schedule
the bank loan shall be repaid in monthly installments starting from July 31, 2007.

On November 23, 2005 Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA granted to the subsidiary Dipol Sp. z 0.0. an
overdraft facility up to the amount of 3,000 thousand zlotys.

Final repayment date — June 2007.

The collateral for this bank loan are:

a)  agreement on transfer of any compensation received from insurance agreement,
b) power of attorney to dispose of the current account,

c) power of attorney to dispose of the current accounts,

d)  agreement with Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA relating to registration pledge on receivables due
from bank account,

e) agreement with Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA relating to registration pledge on receivables due
from bank accounts,

f) registration pledge on assets,
g) registration pledge agreement on shares in DIPOL sp. z 0.0.,
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h) submission to execution of the borrower

i} iwo registration pledges on fixed assets of DIPOL sp. z o.0. For Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA
each in 4.269,3 thousand EUR,

The interest is based on WIBOR 1 week plus bank margin.

As of December 31, 2005 the subsidiary did not draw the loan. Pursuant to the repayment schedule
the bank loan shall be repaid June 30, 2007,

On November 23, 2005 Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA granted to the subsidiary Dipol Sp. z 0.0. an VAT
bridge facility up to the amount of 17,000 thousand zlotys.

Final repayment date — March 2007.
The collateral for this bank loan are:

a) instruction of the borrower submitted to the proper tax autherity informing to reimburse all VAT
to the VAT account,

b}  agreement with Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA relating to registration pledge on receivables due
from bank accounts,

c) Power of attorney for Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA to dispose of VAT facllity bank account of the
borrower held in Raiffeisen Bank Polska SA,

d) Submission to execution according to the Article 97 of the Banking Act as of August 29 1897
until March 31, 2009.

The interest is based on WIBOR 1 month plus bank margin.

As of December 31, 2005 the subsidiary did not draw the loan. Pursuant to the repayment schedule
the bank loan shall be repaid March 31, 2007.

Litigation:

On October 17, 2005 the Company received a lawsuit, in which K&K Consultanis Sp. z o0.0. claims
from the Company 394 thousand zioty plus interest as a reimbursement for termination by the
Company of agreement concluded with K&K Consultants Sp. z 0.0.. File is pending. In the opinion of
the Management of the Company the risk of failing this lawsuit is remote.

b) Tax settlements

Tax settlements and regulated areas of business aclivities (i.e. foreign currencies and customs issues)
can be subject to confrol by administrative authority which is entiled to impose heave and adverse
fines and sanctions. Due 1o lack of stable legal reguiations in Poland there is a lack of integrity and
high level of vagueness in the binding regulations. The differences in interpretation of tax reguiations
in the tax offices and companies cause conflicts and area of uncertainty. Due to the above the tax risk
in Poland is significantly higher than in other countries with higher developed tax systems.

The tax seitlements may be subject of control over 5 years period started from the end of year in
which the tax liability was paid. As a result of such control the tax liability of the group may be
increased. According to the Group as at December 31, 2005 all provisions for recognized and
countable tax risks were calculated.
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c) Investment liabilities

As of December 31, 2005 the Group plans to incur capital expenditure in 2006 for tangible fixed assets
and capital investments in the amount of approximately 127 millions zloty. The funds will be spent on
purchase of new machines and equipment.

48 Profit distribution

On March 23, 2005 the General Shareholders Meeting voted the resolution stating that:

- Changes to the resolution dated June 3, 2004 regarding coverage of loss incurred in 2003
in the amount of 8,138 thousand zlotys from additional paid in capital

- The profit of the parent company for the year 2004 in the amount of 18,875 thousand PLN
will distributed to the reserve capital for dividend payment or advance for dividend

- Apportion of reserve capital for dividend payment from the profit for 2002 which in 2005
will not be distributed.

49 Liabilities to State Budget or local authority budgets

The Capital Group did not report any liabilities towards State Budget or local authority budgets
resulting from purchasing of buildings.

50 Information on revenue, costs and resuits of discontinued operations

Till December 31, 2005 the Group did not discontinue any activities and no plans exist to discontinue
any significant activity in the next period.

51 Information on significant related party transactions
As of the end of December 31, 2005 the Capital Group reported sales to entities excluded from
consolidation in the amount of 144 thousand zlotys.

All of the Company's transactions with related party in the specific periods are presented in the tables
below:
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52 Information on joint ventures

On March 15, 2004 the parent company signed a joint venture agreement with Przedsiebiorstwo
Projektowo-Serwisowe Elekfroniki, Pomiardw w zakresie Automatyki, EPA Sp. z 0.0. relating to
development of wind farm projects.

Development expenditure is agreed between the joint venture partners on the annual basis. Till
December 31, 2005 the parent company incurred development expenditure in the amount of 4,378
thousand zlotys. The effect of the cooperation in 2005 was the completion of development of 22MW
wind farm project located near Puck. Pursuant to the released current reports the Group plans to
complete the construction of wind farm in Puck till December 31, 2006.

The parent company plans to incur development expenditure for wind farm projects in the amount of
approximately 2,000 thousand zlotys in the period of one year ended December 31, 2006.

Share in profits amounts to 50% for each party of the joint venture.

53 Employment

in 2004- 2005 the average employment in the Capital Group classified into groups, calculated as the
average of the end of month levels, amounted to:

Number of employees
31.12.2005 31.12.2004

Blue collar empioyees 106 126
White collar employees
38 41
Total employment
144 167

54 Remuneration, including profit based bonuses, paid or payable to
members of the management and supervisory bodies (in cash or in
nature}

In 2004 and 2005 the remuneration of the Management Board amounted to:

31.12.2008 31.12.2004

Management Board

Stephen Klein 339 -
Grzegorz Skarzyrniski 428 345
Anna Kwarcirska 347 358
Wojciech Cetnarski 194

Michat Kozlowski 17
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Robert Stelmaszczyk - 437

in 2004 and 2005 the Management Board Members and Supervisory Board Members of the parent
company did not receive any remuneration resulting from being in the management boards of related
companies.

Till December 31 ,2005 the members of the Supervisory Bodies received remuneration in the amount
of 340 thousand zlotys, including Mr. Zbigniew Prokopowicz 340 thousand zlotys. In 2005 other
members of the Supervisory Bodies did not receive the remuneration.

55 Loans and other similar benefits granted to members of the management
and supervisory bodies their spouses, brother, sisters, heirs and other
related persons.

In the year ended December 31, 2005 there were no transactions with Management Board Members
and Supervisory Board Members.

56 Presentation of changes in Company’s shares or rights to these shares
(options) held by managing and supervising persons in the period of 12
months ended December 31, 2005

During the period of year ended December 31, 2005 there was an option plan for the management
and employees in the parent company. The option plan is described in the table below:

Option
beneficiaries

plan

Management and supervisory persons

Employees, other persons
rendering services for the
company or its subsidiaries and
supervising persons

Grant Date

18.03.2005

18.03.2005

Vesting Date

30.09.2005/ 31.12.2005 and
30.09.2006/ 31.12.2006

30.09.2005/ 31.12.2005 and
30.09.2006/ 31.12.2006

Expiry date 01.09.2007 01.09.2007
No of shares in the

program 203 420 121 996
No of options granted 203 420 0
Exercise price/share 2 PLN 2 PLN

Type of settlement

Share emission

Share emission

Conditions of exercise

~the managing person is in Management Board

- the managing person has received vote of acceptance
from the general shareholders meeting for the proper
financial year

- the average share price for the 6 months as at
30.09.2005/ 31.12.2005 and

30.09.2006/ 31.12.2006 respectively amounts to 1,74
USD recalculated te Polish zloty or other payment
currency binding in Poland

Option  grant through resolution  of
Management Board after positive opinion
of Supervisory Board
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The fair value of option was estimated based on the binominal model. The fair value amounts to:
Options September 30, 2005 — 5.87 PLN
Options December 31, 2005 — 5.90 PLN
Options September 30, 2006 — 5.94 PLN
Options December 31, 2006 — 5.96 PLN

The table below presents the change of number of options granted in the period of the fourth quarter
ended December 31, 2005.

Number of options Average price
Number of - "
options as at
January 1, 2005
Options granted 203 420 -
Options exercised 69 922 2PLN
Number of 133 498 -
options as at
December 31,
2005

On April 21, 2005 the Supervisory Board of PEP S.A. voted the resolution regulating the condition for
CEO Stephen Klein in which the Supervisory Board obliged itself to establish till December 31, 2005
detailed regulation about the Management Option for Stephen Klein. Stephen Klein will be entitied to
purchase till June 30, 2008 not more than 358 00 shares of new issue at the exercise price equal to
the price paid by investors in the initial public offer. The detailed conditions of the option plan were
accepted by the Supervisory Board on November 3, 2005. The option program for Mr. Stephen Klein
is presented in the table below:

The option program of Mr. Stephen Klein is presented below:

Option plan Mr. Stephen Klein
beneficiaries
Grant Date
3.11.2005
30.06.2066
Vesting date 30.06.2007
10.06.2008
Expiry date 01.07.2008
E:O;;:‘hares in the 358 000
g:; ntedOf options 358 000
Exercise price/share 7,8 PLN
Type of settlement Share emission
Condi.tions of | - the managing person is in Management Board
exercise - the managing person has received vote of acceptance from the general shareholders meeting
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for the proper financial year J

The fair value of option was estimated based on the Black-Scholes-Merton model. The fair value
amounts to:

Options June 30,2006 — 1.27PLN
Options June 30,2007 ~ 1.43PLN
Options June 10,2008 — 1.49 PLN

The charge into the profit and loss account for the year 2005 resulting from the above mentioned
option programs amounted fo 1,032 thousand zlotys.

On 13th December 2005, Mr. Wojciech Cetnarski submitted his resignation from the Board of
Directors, effective from 13th December 2005. In consequence the conditions allowing for option
exercise by Mr. Wojciech Cetnarski cannot be met.

On 13th December 2005, Mr. Grzegorz Skarzynski submitted his resignation from the Board of
Directors, effective from 31st December 2005. Mr. Grzegorz Skarzynski is entitled to exercise its
option for 35 454 shares of the Company which is vested December 31, 2005. As a result of the
resignation the conditions allowing for exercise of option for 12 515 company shares granted to Mr.
Grzegorz Skarzyhiski on December 31, 2006 cannot be met.

On January 31, 2006 the Supervisory Board voted a resolution based on which: (i) the right for 12,515
options to the Company shares pertaining to Mr. Grzegorz Skarzyniski was transferred to Mr. Stephen
Klein, (i) the right for 47,969 options to the Company shares pertaining to Mr. Wojciech Cetnarski was
transferred to Mr. Stephen Klein, (iiiy Mr. Stephen Klein was granted 9,516 options to the Company
shares, Mr. Michal Koziowski was granted 34,511 options and Mr. Zbigniew Prokopowicz was granied
30,000 options. The above mentioned options will be besting after December 31, 2006. The eligible
persons will purchase the shares at nominal value of PLN 2. The shares will be issued by the
Management based on the statutory prerogative 1o issue shares within the specified limit.

57 Information on significant prior period events recognized in current year
consolidated financia! statements

in the period of year 2005 there were no events relating to prior periods recognized in the current

financial statements.

58 Information on post balance sheet events not reflected in the consolidated
financial statements

Up to the date of preparation of these consolidated financial statements i.e. till March 1, 2008, there
were no events that were not, but should have been, disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements.

59 Business combinations

Till December 31, 2005 there were no business combinations within the Capital Group structure.

91



Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year Ended December 31, 2005
Additional Notes and Explanations

{in thousand zlotys)

60 Information on CO2 emission rights for the years 2005-2007

As of January 1, 2005 the act date December 22, 2004 about CO2 and other substances emission
trading (Journal of Laws 281. pos. 2784) which defines the rules for emission trading which has the
goal to limit these emissions in an profitable and economically efficient way. PEP Group is subject to
this act. Pursuant to the regulation of Ministry Council date December 27, 2005 about acceptance of
National Allocation Plan for CO2 emissions in the year 2005-2007 and the list of installations
temporarily excluded from the emission trading system in the period from January 1, 2005 to
December 31, 2007 the installations belonging to PEP received the emission rights in this period.
According to this allocation the yearly emission rights for CO2 in years 2005-2007 amount to 125 500
tons of CO2. Based on the preliminary unaudited reports claiming the emission in 2005 erupted by
PEP installations the amount of CO2 emissions in 2005 were 95,438 tons. As a result of the
concluded by the Group outsourcing contracts the surplus of emission rights over the factual emission
in the amount of 5,800 tons will be realized by the Group customers. The 2005 surplus in the amount
of 24,262 tons can re realized by the Group in subsequent years. In the years 2006-2007 the Group
des not plan emissions above the limit allocated to its installations.
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Polish Energy Partners S.A.
ul. Wiertnicza 169
02-952 Warszawa

Warsaw, March 1, 2006

CEO letter to the Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2005 was the 8th year of Company’s operation. In this year the Company
and its Capital Group continued the actions started in 2004. These actions formulate
the basis of further development of the Company and its Capital Group both through
increase of the quality of services rendered and increase of its scope as well. In
consequence the market position and the credibility of the Company and its Capital
Group increased.

As a consequence the market position and the credibility of the Company and its
Capital Group have improved.

Significant events

It is to my pleasure to inform you that in 2005 the Group delivered Net Profit of 9.3
mPLN in comparison to 6.6 mPLN in 2004. The significant increase in Net Profit is
due to Group’s participation in the production of renewable energy from biomass. The
Group operates a combined heat and power plant which is one of the most significant
producers of renewable energy (“green energy”) from biomass combustion. In 2005
the Group increased the return on equity and net profit margin to the level of 9.1%
and 15.3% respectively.

Moreover the most significant events in 2005 related to the operational activity of the
Capital Group include:

» Start of listing on the Warsaw Stock Exchange in May 2005

+ Conclusion of an agreement with on of the key customers for implementation
of an investment project (hereinafter referred to as "the Jupiter Project”) in a
heat and power plant owned by the Group which covers the replacement of an
existing turbine set with new steam, extraction and back-pressure turbine set.
The value of the Jupiter Project amounts to app. 40 million ziotys.




¢ Conclusion of a set of agreements comprising the Wind Farm project with
capacity of 22MW located in Puck. The Group signed long term power
purchase agreement, construction agreement and financing agreements
supporting necessary funds to construct the Wind Farm. Production of green
electricity in Wind Farm Puck is planned for January 2007.

o Completion of the works for Arctic Paper S.A. located in Kostrzyn related to
preparation for construction of new industrial combined heat and power plant,
gas fired. The new CHP will replace the old one, coal fired.

Prospects and plans

PEP will leverage its position in the energy outsourcing and wind power generation
sectors to become the leading renewable energy company in Poland

The Group plans to continue to grow Industrial Energy Outsourcing activities within
Poland, targeting sizeable opportunities, where biomass expertise can be leveraged

The Group plans also to develop existing pipeline and relationships to capitalize on
opportunities in the wind energy market. PEP plans to capture over 10% of wind
capacity in Poland from 2007 and grow share in the following years. In order to meet
these goals the Group plans to secure rights in projects of total capacity of 150MW
and will invest in these projects. These projects shall be completed by the end of
2009 based on precedent price conditions. The Group has already approximately
90MW in identified projects.

The Group plans also to develop new business line which is production of biomass
for energy sector. In 2006 the Group plans to prepare business plan and to plant trial
crops of mast promising species.

As a consequence of the plans presented above the Net profit delivered in 2006
should be at the level of 12 mPLN which is higher by 29% to the 2005 figure.

Truly Yours,

Stephen Klein — President of the Management Board,
CEC
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POLISH ENERGY PARTNERS CAPITAL GROUP DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR 12 MONTHS PERIOD
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Warsaw, March 1, 2006




Polish Energy Partners capital group directors’ report
for 12 months period ended December 31, 2005

Polish Energy Partners S.A. (hereinafter referred to as a "Parent Company”) has been
incorporated by the Notarial Deed dated July 17, 1987. The Parent Company is registered with
the National Court Register held by the District Court for the city of Warsaw, XX Econcmic
Department of the National Court Register, Entry no. KRS 0000026545, The Company has been
allocated a statistical number, REGON 012693488. The seat of the Parent Company is at 169
Wiertnicza St. in Warsaw. The year 2005 was the 4th year of Group’s operation. The financial year
is the same as tax year. In this year the Company and its Capital Group coniinued the actions
started in 2004. These actions formulate the basis of further development of the Company and its
Capital Group both through increase of the quality of services rendered and increase of its scope
as well. The market position of the Group improved and the Group's credibility on the market
increased which enables the Group to acquire new capital and new investors.

1. Group’s structure with indication of entities subject to consolidation and entities
excluded from consolidation

The description of Group's structure is enclosed in the Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statement.

2. Discussion of main financial figures disclosed in the yearly financial statements, in
particular description of events and factors, including unusual events that have
material impact on the issuer’s activity and reported profits or losses in the current
financial year and discussion of the development perspectives within at least next one
financial year

The consolidated financial statement for the year 2005 presents the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2005 with total assets amounting to 378,739 thousand zlotys. For the year
2005 the Group reported net profit in the amount of 8,341 thousand zlotys, sales revenue in the
amount of 61,086 thousand zlotys and operating profit in the amount of 13,176 thousand zlotys.

Factors and events unusual and infrequent in nature are:
» Included in the operating profit there is an amount resulting from option valuation granted
to managing and supervisory persons. The cost was estimated at 1,032 thousand zlotys.
» In the third quarter of 2005 the Company realized revenue from sales of developed project
for the combined hat and electricity ptant fo Arctic Paper S.A.

The Subsidiary company Saturn Management Sp. z o.0. i Wspélnicy, Spétka Komandytowa
(,Saturn Management"), which in 2002 purchased from Mondi Packaging Paper Swiecie S A a set
of tangible and intangible assets designed for generation of electrical energy and heat is
consolidated within the Polish Energy Partners S.A. Group. Saturn Management leased to Mondi
Packaging Paper Swiecie S.A. the abovementioned assets and signed an agreement for
rendering service of maintaining and operating those assets. Saturn Management continues the
agreed Investment — Modernization Program on the heat plant site.
Considering the fact, that the lease agreement fulfills the criteria of the financial lease included in
the International Financial Reporting Standards, the leased fixed assets have been presented in
the attached financial statements as receivables from financial lease. Construction in progress
(“CIP™) presented in our financial statements is presented in the amount corresponding to the
unpaid investment liabilities as of December 31, 2005 relates to the Investment — Modernization
Program.
The receivables amount resulting from financial lease has been presented in this report in the
following way (in PLN thousand):

L.ong term receivables 231.587 thousand zlotys
Other short term receivables 15.566 thousand zlotys

In the next financial year the Company plans to focus its efforts on extension of its wind farm
portfolio. The wind farm porffolio is built based on a joint venture agreement with
Przedsiebiorstwermn Projektowo-Serwisowym Elektroniki, Pomiarow w zakresie Automatyki,
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EPA Sp. z 0.0. in relation to development of wind farm projects. The Company plans to

construct wind farm portfolio of total power of 150MW till 2010,

The Group plans also to supply biomass which is a substitute of fossil fuels to power plants in
Poland. In 2006 the first actions are to be taken in order to meet this goal. The effects of these
actions will be reflected in the profit and loss account in the subsequent years.

Characteristics of assets and liability structure of the consolidated balance sheet

including liquidity perspective

Total assets
Shareholders’ funds

Net profit/loss

Return on assets

Net profit

Total assets

Return on equity

Net profit

Shareholders’ funds
Net sales profitability

Net profit/ (loss)

Sales revenue

Liquidity |

Current assets

Short-term liabilities

Liquidity 11

Trade securities + cash

Short-term liabilities

Stability of financing

Shareholders’ funds + provisions + long-term
liabilities

Total liabilities and equity
Debt ratio (%)

{Total liabilities and equity — shareholders’ funds)
x 100

TFotal assets

2005

378 739
111 621
9341
2,5%

9,1%

15,3%

2,88

1,41

92.2%

70,5%

2004

340 277
101 124
6653
2,0%

7.0%

13,3%

2,37

1,50

92,8%

70,3%
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Return ratios at all levels indicate increase in efficiency of the Group in 2005 in relation to
2004. The Group reported significant increase in return on equity and net profit margin.

The liquidity ratio | indicates insignificant increase in 2005 in refation to 2004. The ratio is at
satisfying tevel, taking into account that over 90% of current assets are cash and short term
receivables.
The ligquidity ratio lll indicates insignificant decrease in 2005 in relation to 2004. The ratio is at
satisfying level in both years and des not constifute risk for timely repayment of short term
receivables.

The stabitity of financing was not subject to significant changes in 2005. The Group finances in
significant percentage its activity with fong term liabilities.

Description of main risks and threats together with assessment of risk level

Risk related to competition

The Issuer is active on the market of industrial energy outsourcing. At present, the PEP Group
enjoys a dominant position in this segment of the power market, with an approximately 77%
share in heat generation, computed as percentage share of total heat supplied under
outsourcing projects functioning on the Polish market and known to the Issuer. Given the
market's attractiveness for investors, the Company anticipates that competition wilt intensify,
also on part of financially-strong foreign operators, which may affect the PEP Group’s ability to
attract new outsourcing contracts and to negotiate good terms and conditions of project
execution. PEP SA has gathered unique experience on the Polish market in the area of both
the development and implementation of optimally-customized technological solutions as well
as construction of the right legal, fiscal and financial structures — which secures PEP SA a
significant competitive edge. Furthermore, the PEP Group believes it crucial that the provided
services are of top quality and that its qualifications are regularly enhanced by know-how
relating to cutting-edge technologies and more effective management methods.

Given the steady growth in demand for energy generated from renewable sources (required
under regulations currently in force), its small supply, and, as a consequence, the anticipated
rise in its prices, investments in green energy generation are becoming increasingly more
attractive. Thus, this market segment is likely to also see the tightening of competition. The
Issuer plans to launch wind farm operations. Given the weather and environmental constraints
in Poland, this is the energy source which in addition to biomass combustion, is viewed as one
offering the greatest potential as a source of green energy. This segment of the Polish power
market is likely to attract Western European and American companies with relevant
experience gathered on other markets. From the project profitability's perspective, the factor of
utmost importance is the location of wind farms. The Issuer has concluded an exclusive
agreement for development of wind farm projects with Przedsigbiorstwo Projektowo-
Serwisowe Elekironiki, Pomiardw i Automatyki EPA Sp. z 0.0., a leading developer of wind
energy projects in Poland. Under the agreement, PEP SA has access to information on best
sites for wind farms, results of wind measurements, and hands-on experience in execution of
wind farms in Poland. Thus, the Issuer is provided with an edge over any potential
competition, as the gathering of such data is time-consuming and costly.

Risk related to the general economic situation in Poland

implementation of the strategic geoals assumed by the Issuer and the projected financial
results are influenced, among others, by macroeconomic factors, which are independent of
the Company's activities. These factors include GDP growth, the inflation rate, general
situation in Polish economy and changes in the legislation. Unfavorable changes of the
macroeconomic indicators may adversely affect the Issuer's projected revenue or increase its
operating costs.

Currency risk
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Part of the PEP Group’s agreements with its customers provide for payments in foreign
currency. Therefore, exchange rate fluctuations can affect the Group's revenue as transtated
into the Polish currency. The Issuer's Group mitigates the effect of the currency risk on the
projects’ profitability by using natural hedging — in projects which involve currency conversions
into the zloty, the majority of expenses incurred in connection with the construction, upgrading
and operation of the CHP plants are borne in the same currency. This also refers to loans
incurred to finance the projects.

Interest rate risk

The share of debt in the structure of the Group's financing is high. According to the PEP
Group’s strategy, which assumes maximization of return on equity, 80% of the financing of the
projects under development comes in the form of debt. Under loan agreements concluded by
the Group companies, interest on the contracted loans accrues at variable rates. A
considerable increase in market interest rates above the values projected by the Issuer and
assumed in project budgets may adversely affect the PEP Group’s financial performance. The
lssuer is aware of such risks and in order to prevent their possible adverse effects it
continuously monitors the money market situation, efficiently manages its financial resources,
and includes in its agreements with customers clauses which provide for the customers’
participation in the interest rate risk.

Risk of fluctuations of coal and natural gas prices and risk related to the availability of these
resources

The Issuer and its Group companies use natural gas, hard coal and biomass to generate
electricity and heat.

in Poland, the PGNiG Group is the main supplier of gas, which comes mainly from Russia. If
PGNIG encounters any difficulties in importing the gas in quantities required to satisfy the
existing needs, gas supplies to customers may be limited. In a case like this, market prices of
natural gas would probably rise, and it could also happen that the Issuer and its Group wouid
not be able to purchase required amounts of the fuel gas. This could limit the business
activities of the Issuer and the members of its Group.

The Issuer and its Group have implemented mechanisms intended to protect them against
adverse effects of fluctuations of the natural resource prices. As a rule, prices of electricity and
heat are linked to prices of hard coal and natural gas. However, there can be no assurance
that the financial results of the Issuer and its Group wili not be adversely affected in spite of
implementing mechanisms protecting against price fluctuations.

Risk related to polish energy market

The energy market in Poland is regulated. The President of the Energy Regulatory Authority
(URE) is the body appointed under the Energy Law to perform tasks related to the regulation
of the fuel and energy management and promotion of competition in the power sector. The
President of URE's powers and responsibilities include: granting, amending and revoking
licenses; approval of draft development plans for power companies; settling disputes between
power companies and between power companies and their customers; approval and control of
tariffs in the energy sector in terms of their compliance with the regulations, especially with the
principle of customer protection against unjustified pricing. The President of URE has the
power to impose penalties on licensed operators.

In its present form, the Energy Law substantially ensures covering justified operating
expenses of power companies. The producers’ right to include their profit in the heat tariffs is
limited, particularly by the overriding principles provided for in the energy law, such as the
principles of protecting customer interests. Thus, profit earning potential depends, to a large
extent, on the company's ability to reduce operating costs.

As the process of implementing competitive market mechanisms in the power sector is well
advanced, licensed power producers are exempt from the obligation to file electricity tariffs for
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approval (subject to certain exceptions). PEP SA's electricity tariffs are not subject to approval
by the URE. However, the tariffs must be prepared according to the principles provided for in
the Energy Law and secondary legislation thereto. On the other hand, PEP SA is required to
draw up heat tariffs and obtain their approval by the URE.

Draft amendments to the Energy Law are currently being considered by the Polish Parliament.
It is proposed that the amendments open way for including profits in tariffs to a larger extent
than currently. Draft amendments to the Energy Law have been approved by the Sejm (the
lower chamber of Polish Parliament). The approved draft amendments are favorable o heat
producers, as they provide for the possibility of including the cost of capital invested in energy-
related activities in the tariffs. The secondary legislation to the Energy Law is also to be
amended. The final wording of the new regulations has not been determined yet; however, the
draft amendments approved by the Sejm will most probably not be changed materially.
Detailed rules for the inclusion of the cost of capital invested by heat producers in their
activities will be stipulated in the secondary legisiation. In addition, the government may also
change its policy and strategy for the power sector in the future.

At present, the Energy Law does not provide for a situation where a power company applies
for the approval of a tariff and uses previous tariff rates in its settlements with customers while
the approval is pending. Currently, the Issuer is awaiting approval of the tariffs for the EC
Jeziorna, while applying the tariff effective in the previous period. There is a small risk that the
prices in the new tariff will be lower than those in the previous one, but in the Issuer's opinion,
the possible difference will be immaterial.

In the Issuer's case, as well as in the case of all the other companies in the power sector,
there is a risk that the URE will refuse to recognize particular expenses borne by the Issuer as
justified ones, which may lead to a lack of possibility to recover the expenses through heat
charges paid by customers. Similarly, there exists a risk that the URE will not permit, in the
future, to increase the prices of the heat energy in proportion to the rise in expenses, or that it
will impose penalties on licensed operators. Based on its to-date experience, the Issuer is
seeking ways to reduce the risk. Thanks to the use of efficient technological solutions and the
Issuer's ability to deliver energy outside the transmission network (without incurring
transmission costs); the prices offered by the PEP Group are competitive in comparison to
market prices.

Risk refated to customers’ financial standing

The PEP Group derives revenues from developed and implemented industrial energy
outsourcing projects under fong-term agreements for electricity and heat supplies. Therefore,
customers’ financial standing and their ability to pay liabilities towards PEP SA constitute a
key factor for the success of the projects as well as the PEP Group's financial performance
and standing. A sudden fall in energy consumption by a customer may also affect the
efficiency of energy generation. Prior to concluding outsourcing agreements and commencing
investment projects, the Issuer conducts a thorough analysis of the potential customers,
sometimes using the services of external consuitants, with a view to assessing the customers’
creditworthiness and prospects for their respective secfors. The PEP Group is very careful in
selecting its customers from sectors with good market potential. The issuer analyses in great
detail the customer's technological process and the project launch is preceded by several-
month cooperation of the two parties.

Risk of dependence on key customers

Every industrial energy outsourcing project, developed and implemented by the Issuer, is in
reality prepared for one customer — a production company. To-date, the PEP Group has
implemented four projects in this area. The share of each of the Group's customers in the
revenue structure exceeded 10%, which means dependence on the customers. With the
development of the Group's activity, execution of new outsourcing projects and the Group's
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expansion on the renewable energy market, particular customers' shares in the revenue
structure will be diminishing.

Risk of loss of key personnel

The activities of the lssuer and the Group are based primarily on the knowledge and
experience of their highly qualified personnel. Due to the limited availability of experts in
industrial energy outsourcing, and the possible attempts by the existing and future competitors
to take over the experts by offering them attractive terms of employment and remuneration,
there is a risk of losing the employees who are of key importance for the development of the
Issuer and its Group. This could adversely affect the Issuer's financial performance and
strategy.

The risk is mitigated through:

High corporate culture of the Issuer, which helps the employees identify themselves with the
Company,

Aitractive of remuneration schemes focusing on incentives and promoting loyalty;

Knowledge management and extensive training program.

Risk of CHP plant operations

CHP plant operations involve the risk of failure to achieve the projected efficiency and
availability of the plant, and failure to meet the contractual terms of energy supplies. The
Issuer's experience shows that the risk of unexpected breakdowns leading to the piants’
operational budget overruns is limited. To mitigate this risk, PEP SA enhances operational
procedures and concludes insurance agreements, or applies contractual clauses whereby any
potential additional costs are transferred onto subcontractors.
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Information on main products, goods or services together in amount and value and
share of particular products, goods and services (if they are material) or its group in the
total sales of the issuer and changes in this area in the financial year

Net revenues from sales of goods {structure - by type) 31.12.2005
févéhﬁés f.mm. sales of energy T e U 534.'
electristy delivered ) o VR . MW .2542
revenues from sales of heat ' | 23219
ﬁeatdelivered R R =, P Sou
revenu”eé from ébﬁsultfnﬁ prbjects . ‘ ‘ 4 088
revenues from sales of over standard (.}u.aii.t.y. and guérantéé. of d.eliveries | 351

] revenuesfrom ”i.ea.s.in.g and operating of the leased assets - J S .3.2 538
alo of goods R T S O ..65.
Total net revenues from sales of goods : 61 096

Information on delivery markets, with the breakdown into domestic and foreign markets
and information about sourcing of raw materials, goods and services with a statement
on dependency from one or more suppliers and customers and in case one supplier or
customer achieves at least 10% share in revenues or sourcing costs— the name of the
supplier or customer and its share in revenues or sourcing costs and its formal
relations with the issuer

In 2005 there were no changes in sales markets of the Capital Group. All of the production or
services were soid fo domestic customers. Due to the character of the business of the issuer —
production of heat and electricity for a specified client in the analyzed period there was
dependency on the customers.

Mondi Packaging Paper Swiecie Lease and CHP No capital relations 53%

SA maintenance service

Zaklady Chemiczne Wizdw S.A. Deliveries of heat and No capital relations 1%
electricity

Polar S.A. Beliveries of heat and No capital relations 12%
electricity

Metsa Tissue S.A. Detliveries of heat and No capital relations 15%
electricity

The main raw materials used by the Group to produce heat and electricity are currently gas
and coal. In previous years the Group was dependant on PGNiG S A. PGNIG S5.A. was the
only deliverer of gas in Poland. Starting from 2004 there is a possibility to purchase gas on
free market. However there is still and will be existent the dependency from transmission
network of PGNIG S.A.

PGNIG S.A. laski region Gas No capital relations 21%
TransLis S.A. Mazowiecki Coal No capita! relations 21%
region

8/22




Polish Energy Partners capital group directors’ report
for 12 months period ended December 31, 2005

7.

10.

1.

12,

Information on agreements concluded with significant impact on issuer’s business,
including agreements which were disclosed to the issuer and are concluded between
the shareholders, insurance agreements or cooperation agreements

Pursuant to the requirements stated in the Regulation of Finance Ministry date October 19,
2005 in relation to the current and periodic information disclosed by the issuers of securities
the issuer discloses information on the significant agreements in form of current reports.

Information on organizational or capital relations of the issuer with other entities and
description of its main domestic and foreign capital investment {securities, financial
instruments, intangible assets and investment property), including capital investments
outside its capital group and the financing methods and description of deposit
structure or main investments done within the capital group within the current financial
year

The capital structure of the Group was presented in the financial statement. information on
capital relations of the issuer were presented in the Notes 4 and 24 to the financial statement.

Description of related party transactions, if the one or total transactions value
concluded by the given related party exceeds 500,000 Euro in the period from the
beginning of the financiai year

Information on related party transactions is presented in the financial statement on the Note
51 to the financial statement.

Information on bank loans drawn, credits with special emphasis on maturity dates and
on guarantees granted

Information on bank loans and credits are presented in the financial statement on the Notes
28, 30 and 46 to the financial statement.

Information on loans granted, together with maturity date, and guarantees granted with
special emphasis on loans, guarantees granted to affiliates

Information on loans granted is presented in the financial statement in the Note 43 to the
financial statement.

In case of share issue in the period covered by this report — description of spending of
the issue inflows

in 2005 financial year there was no share issue.
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13.

Discussion of differences between the reported financial statements in the yearly report
and the previously published forecasts of results for the current year

Forecast
Forecasted category {adjusted if Result Comments
applies)
Difference is due to lower heat and electricity demand
resulting from delays in investment programs completion
Sales revenue by the Group customers. The forecast was prepared
(including net interest assuming completion of these investment programs by
on leased assets) 84.8 mPLN 63.4 mPLN the customers which should result in higher production of
Group customers and in consequence higher heat and
electricity demand.
The reported net profit includes financial cost of 2.6
mPEN from foreign exchange resulting form balance
sheet valuation. The above cost was not included in the
Net Profit 9.0 mPLN 9.0 mPLN forecast which was prepared under the assumption of flat

exchange rate of EUR and USD as at December 31,
2004 and 2005.

Adjusted operating cash
flow

(operating cash flows
increased with income
from equity and debt 40.9 mPLN 25.5 mPLN
fees reported in cash
flow in other investment
income less investment
VAT receivables)

The difference is due to later than assumed receivables
repayment by the Group customers. Receivables due in
December 2005 were mainly repaid in January 2006 and
not in December 2005 as it was assumed in the forecast.
Moreover due to changes in invoicing schedule of capital
expenditure in the wind farm project the Group provided
bridge finance for the VAT on capital expenditure white in
the forecast it was assumed that the above VAT will be
financed by VAT loan facility.

Estimated capital
expenditure

The difference is due to changes in invoicing schedule of
capital expenditure in one of the projects executed by the
71.1 mPLN 46.3 mPLN Group. The unrealized capital expenditure was shifted to
2008.

14.

15.

Assessment, together with judgment relating to financial management with particular
emphasis on ability to meet the liabilities and description of potential threats and
actions that the issuer has taken or plans to take in order to mitigate these threats

The main part of financial liability of the issuer and its capital group consists of bank loans,
which are disclosed in detall in the financial statements. All of the financial liabilities of the
issuer and its capital group are being paid without any significant delays. In the financial year
2005 there were no threats of liability repayment on time.

Assessment of ahility to complete investment plans, including capital investments, in
comparison to the owned cash resources, including to the potential changes in
financing structure:

The Capital Group PEP operates on the industrial energy outsourcing market and the
renewable energy market by running the Saturn CHP which produces energy from biomass
combustion. The issuer plans to increase its share in renewable energy by producing wind
energy.

Growth factors:
- Specialization in execution of industrial power outsourcing projects tailored to the needs of
specific customers;
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16.

- Focus on customers with good financial standing and operating on strategically sound
markets;

- Development of highly qualified management and engineering personnel having the skills
required for the management of existing and development of new projects;

- Strengthening of the position on the renewable energy market - construction of wind
farms;

PEP strives to finance its specific project on 80% basis of bank loan, and 20% to be financed
with own equity. The Company has now the assumed share of funds to finance its planned
capital expenditure.

Assessment of factors and unusual events which impact the reported result for the
current financial year, together with assessment of the level of impact of these factor
and events on the reported results and events which significantly impact reported
resuits in the current financial year or which could have potential significant impact in
the subsequent years;

In the first quarter of 2005 revenues resulting from share of benefits between the Group and
one of its clients had significant impact on the reported financial resuit. The above mentioned
benefits result from sale of electricity at preferred prices (“renewable energy”, “green energy”).

In the first quarter of 2005 the implementation of industrial energy outsourcing project in
Konstancin Jeziorna was started which was described in the prospectus as project C, which
was continued in quarters || and lil. Due to purchase of the remaining 50% of shares in Dipol
Sp. z o.0. the Company became the sole owner of the wind farm project for 22MWe,
described in the prospecius as project B. In the period of second, third and fourth quarter
ended respectively June, 30, September 30, December 31 2005 the Company continued the
implementation of these two new projects. The milestones were achieved in line with the
assumed deadlines and the expenses for development of new projects were not overrun.

On 28 July 2005, the Company and its subsidiary, Saturn Management Spotka z ograniczong,
odpowiedzialnoscig i wspdlnicy, Spétka Komandytowa {("SM") and Mondi Packaging Paper
Swiecie S.A. ("Mondi"), concluded an Annex to Contract for Provision of Services and Mutual
Co-operation of the Parties, made on 29 April 2002 and an Annex to the General Contract
made on 29 April 2002 ("the Annexes”). Pursuant to the Annexes SM committed to implement
an investment project (hereinafter referred to as "the Jupiter Project”) in a heat and power
plant owned by SM, described in the prospectus as Project A, which covers the replacement
of an existing turbine set with new steam, extraction and back-pressure turbine set. Moreover,
the annexes specify the method of calculation of part of fees as well as principles of mutual
settlements made between Mondi and SM. The value of the Jupiter Project amounts to app.
40 million zlotys.

On 25 July 2005, the Company's subsidiary - Saturn Management Spd*ka z o.0. | Wspdlinicy,
Spd’ka Komandytowa ("SM") concluded a contract for technical services, supplies and
construction works ("the Contract") with Alstom Power Spéka z 0.0. ("the Contractor"). Under
the said Contract, the Contractor shall construct, deliver and sell fo SM a complete,
assembled and ready-to-work steam turbo-generator and render all other services related
thereto. Value of the contract: 38,600 thousands ziotys. In the cases provided for in the
Contract, the Contractor shall pay agreed penalties to SM, but not exceeding 20% of the total
contractual amount.

In the third quarter of 2005 the Company completed the works related to preparation for
construction of new industrial combined heat and power plant, gas fired, for Arctic Paper S.A.
located in Kostrzyr. The new CHP will replace the old one, coal fired. New CHP with 130MWt
of thermal power and 20MWe of electrical power will replace the existing, unecological coal
fired CHP. The specialists from PEP not only prepared economically and technically optimal
technological configuration of new CHP but which is very important assured the supplies of
gas by negotiating 20 year contract for gas delivered from local fields and operated by PGNIG
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S.A. in the roundabouts of Kostrzyn at Odra. The CHP project is a typical example of using the
local gas fields for energy projects which implements the ecological effect with economical
effectiveness.

In fourth quarter 2005 the subsidiary named Dipol Sp. Z 0.0. continued the development of
wind farm project. As a result the following contracts have been sighed:

described in current report 46/2005 contract with Polenergia S.A. headquartered in Warsaw
(hereinafter referred to as "Polenergia”) for the sale of property rights to certificates of origin of
electricity generated in renewable sources (hereinafter referred to as the "Contract”). Pursuant
to the Contract, Dipol shall sell Polenergia the property rights to certificates of origin of
electricity generated in renewable sources (hereinafter referred to the "Rights"), and
Polenergia shall purchase the Rights from Dipol. The number of Rights sold by Dipol shall be
determined based on the volume of renewable energy generated by Dipol. The said
production volume in 2006 specified in the Contract amounts to 10,000 MWh, and by 2007
51,000 MWh a year. The Contract shall be effective by 31st December 2021.

described in current report 47/2005 contract with contract for the construction of a wind farm
with the capacity of 22MW ("the Contract”) with the company Gamesa Wind GmbH with its
registered office in Aschaffenburg, Germany ("Gamesa"). Under the Contract, Gamesa shall
construct a wind farm with the capacity of 22MW by 31 December 2006. Dipol shall pay the
Agreed Price of EURQ 23,800,000 (PLN 95,818,800} to Gamesa.

described in current report 51/2005 contract with Raiffeisen Bank Polska with its registered
office in Warsaw (hereinafter referred to as the "Bank"), (i} an investment loan contract and (ii)
VAT loan contract (hereinafter referred to as the "Contracts”).Under the Contracts the Bank
granted Dipol the following:

= (i) an investment loan in the amount of EUR 21,600,000 (PLN 84,758,400},
= (i) a shori-term loan in the amount of PLN 3,000,000 and

= {ii) a VAT loan (i.e. VAT financing loan) in the amount of PLN 17,000,000
{hereinafter referred to as the "Loans").

The investment loan shall be repaid by December 31, 2021. The short-term loan shall be
repaid by June 30, 2007. VAT loan shall be repaid by March 31, 2007.

described in current report 55/2005 contract with a contract for sale of electrical energy
produced by RSE (renewable sources of energy) (hereinafter referred to as the "Contract”)
with Koncern Energetyczny ENERGA S.A. with ifs registered office in Gdafisk (hereinafter
referred to as "ENERGA"). Pursuant to the provisions of the Contract, Dipol shall sell o
ENERGA electrical energy produced in Puck Wind Farm.

in the fourth quarter due to subcontractor problems there are delay and cost overrun against
the budgeted figures in the project Mercury. Project Mercury assumes construction of 8MW
power plant, which will use coke gas being a waste from coke production and which will be
supplied by Coke Plant Walbrzych. The investment completion is expected in June 2006,

Description of and projections regarding external and internal factors with a material
bearing on the development of the issuer and its group and perspectives of issuer’s
development for at least one year after the year for which the current financial
statement is prepared, including elements of its market strategy;

External Factors significant for the development of the Capital Group

Poland's Membership in the European Union

Poland's membership in the European Union requires that the Polish legal regulations
governing the power sector should be harmonized with the respective EU standards. The
Eurocpean community shapes the energy markets in the member states through Directives
issued by the European Parliament. The key directives which affect PEP SA’s activities
concern the following issues:
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Production of renewable energy - (Directive 2001/77/EC) — The EU promotes “green” energy
in order to reduce the dependence of European markets on imports of energy carriers, as well
as to mitigate the use and contamination of the natural environmernt.

Reduction of pollutant emissions ~ (Directives 2003/87/EC, 2001/80/EC and 280/2004/EC) -
Under these directives, the EU member states are obliged to implement mechanisms for the
reduction of greenhouse gas emissions to the atmosphere, in line with the Kyoto Protocol.

Promotion of efficient energy production technologies — (Directive 2004/8/EC) — The EU has
found that an increased share of cogeneration of electricity and heat in energy production
contributes to the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions to the atmosphere. Accordingly, the
EU has implemented mechanisms for the promotion of cogeneration technology.

Enhancement of the market competitiveness — (Directive 2003/54/EC) — The EU's strategic
objective is to enhance the competitiveness on the energy market through energy customers’
freedom fo select any supplier of energy. This creates ample opportunity for the development
of energy generation piants close to end-users.

Poland has been harmonizing legal regulations governing the energy market with the
European standards as stipulated in the European Parliament’s directives. This renders the
upgrading of the majority of industrial CHP plants indispensable, as these plants currently do
not meet the environmental protection standards. Also indispensable is an increase in
electricity generation from renewable energy sources. An increase in electricity consumption
in Poland is also anticipated, as currently this consumption is approximately 40% lower than in
the “old” member states of the European Union. The changes expected on the Polish energy
market will fuel development of the Issuer's business. PEP SA's facilities already meet the
European environmental protection standards. PEP SA has been investing and intends to
invest in electricity generation from renewable energy sources: at the Saturn CHP Plant in
Swiecie, Poland’s largest state-of-the-art CFB boiler, adapted to biomass co-combustion, was
commissioned. Moreover, in anticipation of an increase in demand for “green” energy from
renewable sources (provided for in the directives and regulations), PEP SA intends to invest in
wind electricity generating units. The issuer uses cogeneration as the leading technology in
industrial units designed for end users, which enables them to be supplied with electricity at
competitive prices, free from network transmission charge. Moreover, the majority of power
units designed and managed by the Issuer record significant reductions of gas emissions,
owing to the application of environment-friendly technologies and solutions.

Another consequence of Poland's accession to the European Union is a partial lifting of
barriers for business development by Polish companies’ activities in the member states. On
the one hand, this opens up a possibility of expanding onto the markets in other member
states; on the other, though, it may result in a stronger competition from foreign companies,
especially given the expected growth of the demand for renewable electricity,

Macroeconomic Factors

The pace of growth of Poland's economy to a large degree affects the financial performance,
as well as investment plans, of companies operating on the Polish market. A marked
improvement in the economic conditions paves the way for more investments, including those
relating to the modernization of production processes, also including the modernization of
industrial CHP plants. This justifies the Issuer expectations that enterprises will become
increasingly more interested in the services provided by PEP SA.

The economic situation and, consequently, investors’ and consumers’ demand is material fo
the existing and potential customers of the Issuer and its Group, thus affecting the customers’
ability to perform their obligations towards the PEP Group. According to macroeconomic
forecasts, the economic growth in Poland should continue at a rate projected by the
government that is up to 5% in 2005.

Growth of the Qutsourcing Services Market

in order to improve their competitive positions on the Polish market, companies are deciding
to outsource non-core auxiliary functions from specialist undertakings. This policy enables
companies to reduce costs of performing these functions and focus on their core business.
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Moreover, operating risks relating to the outsourced auxiliary activities may be, if only partially,
passed on the services providers. Outsourcing is already relatively common in a number of
areas, including IT solutions and servicing, facility protection and management, as well as
cleaning and catering services. Forecasts speak of an ever-broadening range of services to
be outsourced in the future by an increasing number of organizations. Given the anticipated
demand for upgrading industrial CHP plants, as well as more stringent environmental
protection requirements, a large number of organizations with energy-consuming production
processes are expected to start commissioning design, construction and management of
modern power facilities from specialist providers.

Development of the Debt Instruments Market

PEP SA seeks to finance its individual projects in 80% with debt and in 20% with equity. Thus
the access to long-term debt instruments is material to the Issuers ability to execute new
projects. The Issuer’s to-date experience proves that the availability of project finance, that is
financing appropriately harmonized with a project's schedule and profile, is rather limited in
Poland. Most of the banks are not prepared to offer project finance instruments, and raising
financing on the Polish debt securities market, dominated by treasury securities, is difficult. On
the developed West-European markets, access to such financing is easier. Increasingly
stronger competition on the banking services market and the growing assets under
management of pension and investment funds should create more opportunities for raising
project debt financing at more attractive prices.

Development of the Renewable Energy Market

The fact that the Polish power market must be aligned with the requirements imposed on
Poland as an EU member is conducive to the dynamic developments in power generation
from renewable sources.

Even prior to its accession to the European Union, Poland had undertaken to perform
obligations pertaining to renewable electricity production. On January 1st 2005, the Regulation
of the Minister of Economic Affairs and Labor, dated December 9th 2004, on purchases of
electricity and heat generated from renewable sources (Dz.U. of 2004, No. 267, item 2656)
came into force. Under this Regulation, electricity distributors are required to purchase
renewable electricity in such amounts that the share of renewable energy in the total volume
of purchased electricity is not less than:

1) 3.1% in 2005;
2) 3.6% in 2006;
3) 4.3% in 2007;
4) 5.4% in 2008;
5) 7.0% in 2009
8) 9.0% in 2010,
7)9.0% in 2011,
8) 9.0% in 2012,
9) 9.0% in 2012
10) 9.0% in 2013
11) 9.0% in 2014.

The volume of currently generated “green” electricity is insufficient — according to ARE’s data,
in 2003, mere 1,750 GWh of renewable energy was produced. In 2004, power utilities are
required to purchase approximately 2,805 GWh of renewable energy. The volume of electricity
produced from renewable sources purchased by the utilities should gradually grow, to reach
7,500 GWh in 2010, at a conservative assumption that total consumption of electricity in
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Poland will not change in comparison with recent years, that is approximately 105,000 GWh
pa (according to PSE SA’s data). For failure to perform the obligation, the utilities will pay
penalties at the rate of 200% of the previous-year average selling price of renewable energy
for each 1 MWh of the deficit of renewable energy in the utility’s total sales volume. Prices of
electricity produced from renewable energy sources are not regulated and, given the limited
supply and large demand, they have been growing. Currently, the price of wind electricity
exceeds PLN 280/MWh and is expected to reach PLN 300/MWh before 2010, and the value of
the wind energy market — approximately PLN 2.25bn.

Given the weather and geclogical conditions in Poland, biomass combustion and wind force
are practically the main sources of development of “green” energy production in Poland.
Especially the wind electricity market is expected to grow, as approximately 30% of the
country's area enjoys conditions supporting the operation of wind farms, and on 5% of the
country's area, recorded wind force creates conditions very favorable to wind electricity
generation. The best locations are spread along the coast of the Baltic Sea. In 2003, installed
capacity of wind electricity generating units totaled 58 MW, and the production was below
150 GWh. According to the Safire forecast model, used by the European Commission for the
purposes of developing growth strategy and implementation programs for the renewable
energy sector, the volume of wind electricity produced in Poland should reach 4,800 GWh in
2010 and 6,000 GWh in 2020. The generation of 4,800 GWh requires 2,000 MW of installed
capacity, meaning that the market can still absorb wind power plants with a total capacity of
over 1,900 MW.

Development of the Power Qutsourcing Market

The industrial power outsourcing market is expected to grow. Currently it is a young market,
as the first outsourcing contract of this type in Poland was concluded in 1998 by PEP SA. As
the operator of four CHP plants, the Issuer is currently the market leader. Furthermore, the
industrial power ouisourcing market is characterized by large potential. Currently, in Poland
there are 877 CHP plants which operate at production plants. The majority of them require
modernization and adaptation to the operating requirements applicable in the European
Union. These plants are potential customers for industrial power outsourcing. The lIssuer’s
Executive Board identified a group of 88 organizations — potential customers of PEP SA — by
performing an analysis of date on annual heat consumption, cost of energy, competitive
position and financial standing of CHP plant owners.

Market Position of Competitors

The industrial power outsourcing market features very little competition. Currently, apart from
the PEP Group, there are four entities offering this type of services on the Polish market. The
PEP Group, with the largest number of completed outsourcing projects, is the leader; its
market share measured by the amount of supplied heat (GJ) is 76%. The development
prospects, both in terms of the market of industrial power outsourcing and the market of
renewable energy, may be conducive to heightened competition in those segments of the
power market. The Issuer's unigue expertise and competence in the field of establishing,
financing and managing complex power solutions should contribute to making PEP SA a
strong market player.

Internal Factors Material to the Development of PEP and the PEP Group

Operational Efficiency of PEP Facilities

PEP S8A is continually monitoring the operation of facilities under its management. Therefore,
it can quickly react to any possible threats to its projected capacity and availability and avoid
any instances of failing to meet its contractual energy supply obligations. Additionally the PEP
Group improves operational procedures and concludes insurance agreements, or uses
contractual clauses which enable PEP SA to transfer possible additional costs onto
subcontractors.
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18.

Expansion of Operations to Develop New Projects

The ability to launch and manage new projects is of critical importance for the ability to
compete on the industrial power outsourcing market and the renewable energy market, and
consequently for the future financial results. PEP SA employs a highly qualified management
and engineering personnel committed to implementation of the Company's strategic
objectives. During the seven years of operations PEP SA has established an experienced
Business Development Department to guarantee continuity of work on new projects and their
successful completion; furthermore, the Company has unique experience on the Paolish
market, permitting it to flexibly customize its solutions to meet individual customers’ needs and
capabilities by relying on cutting-edge energy technologies and advanced legal structures.
Moreover, the Issuer gradually improves the efficiency of the Group’s operations by applying
advanced IT solutions in budgeting and cost control processes.

Description of the Development Prospects of the PEP Group

The Capital Group PEP operates on the industrial energy outsourcing market and the
renewable energy market by running the Saturn CHP which produces energy from biomass
combustion. The issuer plans to increase its share in renewable energy by producing wind
energy.

Growth factors:
- Specialization in execution of industrial power outsourcing projects tailored to the needs of
specific customers;

- Focus on customers with good financial standing and operating on strategically sound
markets;

- Development of highly qualified management and engineering personnel having the skills
required for the management of existing and development of new projects;

- Strengthening of the position on the renewable energy market — construction of wind
farms;

- Launch of outsourcing activities outside Poland — in Central Europe;

Development strategy and investment plans of the Capital Group of the Issuer and key
directions in the development of the capital group of the issuer

The Capital Group PEP will leverage its position in the industrial energy outsourcing sector
and generation of wind energy in order to become leading company on the Polish renewable
energy market. The management of the Issuer believes that due to exploitation of increase
and profitability of these markets will be able to generate very attractive returns from
investments to its shareholders.

The development strategy of the Issuer and its Capital Group for the next years is
concentrated in increase of shareholders’ wealth, among others through the foliowing actions:

= Maintenance of development of industrial energy outsourcing in Peland by completion
of large enough projects in which the issuer can exploit its biomass experience

" Strengthening its position in the suppliers of renewable energy market, completion of
developed wind farm projects. The Group plans to secure 150MW in wind farm
projects in cooperation with EPA Sp. z 0.0. and securing further wind farm projects
with total capacity of 128MW from other developers in order to have in Poland by the
end of 2010 total capacity of 300 MW in wind farms.

L] The Group plans to supply biomass which is a substitute for fossil fuels to Polish
power plants. In 2006 the first actions are to be taken in order to meet this goal. The
effects of these actions will be reflected in the profit and loss account in the
subsequent years.
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19.

20.

. Systematical cost reduction through tight expenditure control in particular projects and
through control of headquarters costs {,continuous improvement).

Changes in the key principles of management of the issuer’s enterprise and its capital
group:

In financial year 2005 there were no changes in the key principles of management of the
issuer's enterprise and the Capital Group.

Changes in the management and supervisory board of the issuer within last financial
year, rules governing appointment and dismissal of managing persons and
competences of managing persons, in particular the right to issue or buy back shares

Changes in the composition of managing and supervisory bodies in 2005 were presented in
the Note 1.3 to the financial statement.

in 2005 the rules governing the appointment and dismissal of supervisory persons
(Supervisory board members) were changed. Based on art. 10.2 and 10.3 of the Statute
{(binding as of July 20, 2005), the members of the Supervisory Board were appointed in the
following way:

“10.2 Until Polenergy Investments B.V. with its seat in Amsterdam ("Polenergy’) and/or any of
the Funds sells the shares in Company, which sale resuits in the obligation fo inform of such
sale, Supervisory Board members shall be appointed and removed in the following way:

a) Polish Private Equity Fund |, Polish Private Equity Fund Il and Polish Enterprise Fund shall
appoint and remove jointly three Supervisory Board members, including the Chairman,

b} Polenergy Investments B.V shalfl appoint and remove three Supervisory Board members.

10.3 Once Polenergy and/or any of the Funds sells the shares in Company, which sale results
in the obligation to inform of such sale, Supervisory Board members shalf be appointed and
removed in the following way:

a) a shareholder holding shares representing 33% of the Company's share capital shall be
entitled to appoint and remove 2 Supervisory Board members;

b) the remaining Supervisory Board members shall be appointed and removed by the General
Meeting.”

Due fo the fact that the public offer of the Company's shares was compieted on May 4, 2005,
as of that day the rules for appointment of Supervisory Board members mentioned in art. 10.2
above were binding any more.

Starting from July 20, 2005 — day of Court registration of changes in the Statute voted by the
General Shareholders Meeting on July 4, 2005 the Supervisory Board is appointed in the
following way:

“a} a shareholder holding shares representing 33% of the Company's share capital shall be
entitled to appoint and remove 2 Supervisory Board members including the Chairman; shall
there be more than one shareholder representing af least 33% of Company's share capital the
Chairman is appointed the shareholder with majority share in Company's capital

b) the remaining Supervisory Board members shall be appointed and removed by the General
Meeting.”

As of February 20, 2006 there are no shareholders exceeding 33% share in Company’s share
capital. In Consequence all the Supervisory Board members are appointed and dismissed by
the General Shareholders Meeting.
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21.

22,

Right of the managing persons to vote a resolution about issue or buy back of Company’s
shares

Till March 7, 2005 which is the day of registration of changes in the Statute introduced based
on the resolution of General Shareholders Meeting dated March 1, 2005 the Management of
the Company had the right to increase the share capital within the target capitat by the amount
of 6,936,048 zlotys.

After the above mentioned changes to the Statute and changes introduced based on the
General Shareholders Meeting dated April 15, 2005 (registered on July 20, 2005) the
Management is allowed to increase the Company's share capital within the limits of target
capital by the amount of 1,366,832 zlotys. Based on above mentioned right on February 27,
2006 the Management voted two resolutions about increase of share capital by (i) 139,844
zlotys (resolution dated November 7, 2005, N class share issue) and (i) 141,816 zlotys
(resolution dated February 3, 2008, O class share issue). The increase in share capital within
the limit of target capital voted in the resolution dated February 3, 2006 has not yet been
registered by the Court.

All agreements concluded between the Issuer and the managing persons which
assume compensation in case of resignation or dismissal from occupied position
without any significant reason or if their dismissal is due to merger or takeover of the
issuer;

The president of the Management Board Stephen Klein is not party of any agreement with the
Company. The conditions of fulfillment of the President of the Management Board by Mr.
Stephen Klein, including the salary, are specified in the resolution of the Supervisory Board.
The above mentioned resolution states that among other, in case of dismissal o Mr. Stephen
Klein from the position of Management Board Member he is entitled and obliged to render his
services for the Company for the period of 9 months withholding the right to salary, excluding
the case of dismissal due to Mr. Stephen Klein fault. In case of resignation of Mr. Stephen
Klein he is entitled and obliged to render his services for the Company for the period of 8
maonths withholding the right to the salary.

Ms Anna Kwarcifiska is party of the work agreement with the Company. The above mentioned
agreement is concluded for unspecified period. The termination period amounts to 6 months.

Mr. Michat Koztowski is party of the work agreement with the Company. The agreement was
concluded for the period of mandate for Mr. Michat Koziowski for Management Board
Member. In case of dismissal of Mr. Michal Koziowski from the Management Board he is
entitled to the compensation in the amount of 255 thousand zlotys gross, excluding the case
of dismissal due to Mr. Michat Koztowski fault. In case of resignation of Mr. Michat Koztowski
he is entitled to the compensation of 168 thousand zlotys gross.

The amount of salaries, bonuses and other rewards, including these resulting from
motivation programs or bonus programs based on issuer’s equity, including programs
based on bonds convertible, subscribe warrants (in cash, nature or whatever other
form) paid, due or potentiaily due, separately for each managing or supervisory
persons of the issuer, no matter if they were incurred in the costs or resulted from
profit distribution, in case the issuer is parent company or significant investor —
separately, information on value of the salaries and bonuses received as a result of
being in management bodies of the affiliates, if the specific information was disclosed
in the financial statements — the duty is treated as fulfilled if the specific reference to
the financial statements was made

The salaries of managing and supervisory persons were presented in the Note 54 to the
financial statements.
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23.

24.

25,

The Company has introduced option program for managing and supervisory persons. Based
on this program which was described in detail in Note 55 to the financial statement, the
options were granted fo the managing and supervisory persons as it is presented in the tabie
below:

Management Board Member or Amount of options Exercise price
Supervisory Board Member

Zbigniew Prokopowicz 107 482 2PLN
Stephen Klein 358 000 7.8 PLN
Anna Kwarcitiska 47 969 2PLN
Grzegorz Skarzynski 35 454 ZPLN

Moreover, in 2005 the Company issued shares at nominal price of 2PLN of class M which was
fully absorbed by the current and former Management Board Members of the Issuer in the
following way:

Robert Stelmaszczyk acquired 96 543 shares
Anna Kwarcinska acquired 42 908 shares
Grzegorz Skarzynski acquired 42 908 shares.

In case of capital companies — indication of total number and nominal value of ail
shares of the issuer and shares in related parties of the issuer which are in possession
of managing and supervisory persons (for each person separately)

Anna Kwarcinska 78 362 shares of Polish Energy Partners S.A. with total
nominal value of 156 724 PLN
Zbigniew Prokopowicz 69 922 shares of Polish Energy Partners S.A. with total

nominal value 139 844 PLN

Indication of sharehoiders owed directly or indirectly through affiliates, at least 5% of
total votes on the general sharehoiders meeting of the issuer, together with indication
of number of shares owed, their percentage share in the share capital, number of votes
these entities have and their percentage share in total amount of votes on the
shareholders meeting

Information on the shareholders of the Issuer is presented in the Note 24 to the financial
statement.

Information on disclosed to the issuer agreements (including these signed after the
balance sheet date) as a result of which changes in the proportion of shares owned by
the current shareholders and bondholders may occur;

The shareholders of the Company - Polish Enterprise Fund L.P., Polish Private Equity Fund i,
Polish Private Equity Fund 1, (hereinafter referred to as the "Funds”) concluded with a
BZ WBK S.A. Brokerage House (hereinafter referred to as "BZ WBK") a lockup agreement.
Under the agreement, the Funds shall not sell any of the Company's shares held within 9
months after the allocation of the Company's shares of 14th and 16th February 2006,
excluding the sale (i) in case of public call or (ii} as a response to significant demand for the
Company's shares, provided that BZ WBK agrees for such a transaction.

The Company's sharehoider - Polenergy Investments B.V. (hereinafter referred to as
“Polenergy") concluded with BZ WBK S.A. Brokerage House (hereinafter referred to as "BZ
WBK") a lockup agreement. Under the agreement, Polenergy shall not selt any of the
Company's shares held within 9 months after the allocation of the Company's shares as part
of the shares sale being conducted by BZ WBK, excluding the sale (i) in case of a public call
or (i) as a response to significant demand for the Company’s shares, provided that BZ WBK
agrees for such a transaction.
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26.

27,

28.

29.

Indication of all owners of shares which have special control rights to the issuer
together with the description of such rights;

There are no owners of shares which have special control rights of the Issuer.
Information on control over employee shares programs;

Due to the fact that the option program in the Company refers to the specified persons and the
criteria of option exercise are objective i.e. being the management board member of the
company on a specified day there is no need to implement control over employee share
program. The Company informs about the increase of the share capital reiating to the
realization of the option program. Moreover the net profit for 2005 includes the valuation of
cost relating to the option program for managing and supervising persons.

Indication of all limitations relating to changes in ownership of the issuer’s shares and
all limitations in relation to effect vote right from issuer’s shares

Shares of class M and N are registered shares. In consequence the mentioned shares are not
listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange. The statute of the Company does not contain any
fimitations on trading of the registered shares. All the shares “to the bearer” are listed on the
Warsaw Stock Exchange and are not subject to any trade limitations excluding those resulting
frem the governing law.

Information on:
I. date of conclusion of agreement between the issuer and the company entitled to perform

audit of financial statements for the audit or review of financial statements or consolidated
financial statements and on period for which such an agreement was concluded,
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a) Agreement dated June 30, 2005 between Polish Energy Partners S.A and Emst & Young
Audit Sp. z 0.0. with seat in, ul. E.Plater 53, 00-113 Warsaw for review of financial statements
for the period of 6 months ended June 30, 2005 and for review of consolidated financial
statements for the period of 6 months ended June 30, 2005

b) Agreement dated November 4, 2005 between Polish Energy Partners S.A. and Ernst &
Young Audit Sp. z 0.0. with seat in, ul. E.Plater 63, 00-113 Warsaw:

» for audit of Company’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005

» for audit of consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005

= for audit of subsidiary Saturn Management Sp. z 0.0. i Wspolnicy Sp. k. for the year ended
December 31, 2005

= for audit of subsidiary Energopep Sp. z 0.0., EC Jeziorna, Sp. k- for the year ended
December 31, 2005

b) total fee resulting from the agreement with the entity entitled to perform audit of financial

c)

statements, due and paid fees resulting from audit and review of financial statements and if the
company prepares consolidated financial statements resulting from audit and review of
consolidated financial statements,

The total fee resulting from the above mentioned agreements amounts to 75 000 EURO.

The audit of all standalone financial statements and the consolidated financial statements for
the year 2004 was performed by Emst&Young Audit Sp. z 0.0. Total fee amounted to 75 000
EURO.

total other fees resulting from other agreements with entity entitled to perform audit of financial
statements or consolidated financial statements, for other services than these mentioned
under b} relating to current financial year,

For services other than mentioned above the company Emst & Young Audit Sp. z 0.0. in 2005
collected fees totaling 15 000 EURO.
For services other than mentioned above the company Emnst & Young Audit Sp. z 0.0. in 2004
coliected fees totaling 43 000 EURO.
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30. Description of significant off balance sheet items including breakdown by entity, item
and value

The description of significant off balance sheet items including breakdown by entity, item and
value is presented in the Notes 33 and 48 to the financial statements.

Stephen Klein - President of the Management Board Zbigniew Prokopowicz — Supervisory Board Member
JSrom June 10, 2005 designated to time limited position of President of the
Management Board of the parent company in charge

from 21 November 2004 to June 10, 2005

Grzegorz Skarzviski - Vice - President of the Wajciech Cetnarski— Vice - President of the
Management Board till December 31, 2005 Management Board from June 10, 2005 till December
13, 2005
Anna Kwarciviska — Member of the Management Board Michat Kozlowski — Member of the Management

Board from December 13, 2005
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Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Long form auditors’ report supplementing the opinion
on the financial siatements
for the year ended December 31, 2003
{in thousands PLN)

GENERAL NOTES
Background

Polish Energy Partners S.A. (hereinafter referred to as a “Parent Company” or a “Company™) is
a Parent Company in the Polish Energy Partners Capital Group (hereinafter referred to as a
“Capital Group” or a “Group™). The Parent Company has been incorporaied by the Notarial
Deed dated July 17, 1997. The seat of the Parent Company is at 169 Wiertnicza St. in Warsaw.

The parent company is issuer of securities enumerated in the art. 4 of the Regulation of
European Parliament and the European Union Council dated July 19, 2002 no. 1606/2002/WE
regulating the application of International Accounting Standards (Journal of Laws WE L dated
September 11, 2002 p.1; Journal of Laws UE Polish special issue, chapter 13, vol. 29 p.609)
and based on the provisions of art 55.6a of Accounting Act dated September 22, 1994 prepares
the consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards which were accepted by EU. This obligation refers to the financial
statements prepared for the financial year beginning in 2005,

On July 19, 2001, the Parent Company was registered with the National Court Register under
entry no. KRS 0000026545.

The Company was granted NI1P: 526-18-88-932 on September 16, 1997 and statistical number,
REGON 012693488 on August 1, 1997.

The primary scope of the Parent Company’s business activities is generation and distribution of
electrical energy and heat. In addition, the scope of the Parent Company’s business activities
includes:

— General building and land engineering, performing specialized construction works,
— Construction of building installations,

— Other forms of granting loans except those activities to the performance of which the
concession or permission is needed or which are restricted for the scope of activities of
banks,

— Research and development works in the area of natural and technical sciences,
— Management and sale of properties at its own expense,

— Contracted property management,

— Financial and accounting activities;

— Constructional, urban and technological design and architecture,

— Business and management consulting;

—  Other commercial activities not classified anywhere else,

—  Other educational activities not classified anywhere else,

— Wholesale of solid, liquid, gas fuels and related products.

The scope of business activities of subsidiaries is connected to the activities of the Parent
Company.

This is a translation of the Long form auditors’ report originally issued in Polish.
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As at December 31, 2005, the Company’s issued share capital amounted to PLN 36,369
thousand. Equity of the Group at this day amounted to PLN 111,621 thousand.

In accordance with the Company’s list of shareholders who had 5% of all votes and registered
for the General Shareholders Meeting on December 23, 2005 the ownership structure of the
Company’s issued share capital was as follows:

Number Number Par value % of equity
of shares of votes of shares
Polish Enterprise Fund L.P. 8,666,049 8,666,049 2.00 47,66%
Other sharcholders 9,518,624 9,518,624 2.00 52,34%
18,184,673 183184,673 100.0%

Based on the minutes from the Management Board meetings dated November 7, 2005 and
February 3, 2006 and based on the provisions of the National Court Register dated January 31,
2006 and after the balance sheet date up to the date of this report there were following changes
to the shareholders’ nominal equity

Number Par value

of shares of shares
Opening Balance 17,932,392 35,865
increase on June 9, 2005 182,359 364
Increase, resolution dated November 11, 2005 69,922 140
Increase, resolution dated February 3, 2006 70,908 142
Closing Balance 18,255,581 36,511

Till the date of this report two last capital increases were not registered with the National Court
Register.

Members of the Company’s Management Board as at March 1, 2006 were as follows:

Stephen Klein - President
Michatl Koztowski - Member
Anna Kwarcinska - Member

On June 10, 2005, the Supervisory Board adopted the resolution no.1 to appoint Mr. Stephen
Klein for the position of President of the Management Board and adopted the resofution no.2 to
appoint Mr. Wojciech Cetnarski for the position of Vice President.

This is a translation of the Long form auditors’ report originally issued in Polish.
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The Supervisory Board adopted the resolution no.l dated December 13, 2005 in which it
accepted the resignation of Mr. Grzegorz Skarzynski from Management Board with effect on
December 31, 2005. In the resolution no.2 dated December 31, 2005 Mr. Grzegorz Skarzynski
was suspended from Vice President of the Company with the effect as of the date of the
resolution.

The Supervisory Board adopted the resolution no.3 dated December 13, 2005 in which it
accepted the resignation of Mr. Wojciech Cetnarski from Management Board with effect on
December 13, 2005.

The Supervisory Board adopted the resolution no.4 dated December 13, 2005 in which it
appointed Mr. Michal Kozlowski to the Management Board with the effect as of the date of the
resolution.

This is a translation of the Long form auditors’ report originally issued in Polish.
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Entities included in the Capital Group

As at December 31, 2005, apart from the Parent Company, the following subsidiaries (direct
and indirect) were included in the Polish Energy Partners Capital Group:

Entity name Consolidation Type of opinion ~ Name of authorized
method entity that audited
financial statements
Saturn Management fuil unqualified Ernst & Young
Sp. z 0.0. 1 Wspdlnicy Audit Sp. z 0.0.
Sp. Komandytowa
Energopep Sp. z 0.0. unqualified, Emst & Young
EC Jeziorna, Sp. full with an Audit Sp. z o.0.
komandytowa emphasis of
matter
Dipol Sp. z 0.0. full Not applicable Not applicable
Interpep Sp. z 0.0,
EC Wizbw, Sp. full Not applicable Not applicable
komandytowa
Interpep Sp. z 0.0.
EC Zakrzow, Sp. full Not applicable Not applicable
Komandytowa
Excluded for

Interpep Sp. z 0.0. Not applicable

consolidation

Excluded for
E . 7 0.0. Not licabl
nergopep Sp. z 0.0 consolidation ot applicable
Saturn Management  Excluded for

Not applicable

Sp. zo.0. consolidation

Excluded for
consolidation

Mars Management

S.T.0. Not applicable

Excluded for

t icabl
consolidation Not applicable

Notos Sp.z 0.0,

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Balance sheet
date

December 31,
2005

December 31,
2005

December 31,
2005

December 31,
2005

December 31,
2005

December 31,
2005

Pecember 31,
2005

December 31,
2005

December 31,
2005

December 31,
2005

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005 the
company MERKURY Energia — Przedsi¢biorstwo Produkcyjno-Ustugowe i Posredniciwa
COMAX Sp. z 0.0., Spotka komandytowa was consolidated using the equity method.
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3.1.

Comparing to previous year in 2005 there were following changes in the scope of entities
subject to consolidation:

¢ The Parent Company purchased 50% of shares in Dipol Sp. z 0.0.

» The following entities were incorporated Interpep Sp. z 0.0, EC Wizéw Sp.
komandytowa, Interpep Sp. z 0.0., EC Zakrzdéw Sp. komandytowa. The Parent company
has 100% shares in the above companies.

Consolidated financial statements

Auditor’s opinion and audit of consolidated financial statements

Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z 0.0. with its registered office in Warsaw, at Rondo ONZ | is an
authorized audit firm registered on the list of certified auditors (No. 130).

Ermst & Young Audit Sp. z o.0. was appointed to audit the Group’s consolidated financial
statements by the Supervisory Board on January 28, 2005.

Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z 0.0. and the chartered accountant in charge of the audit meet the
conditions required to express an impartial and independent opinion on the financial
statements, as stipulated by Art. 66.2 and 3 of the Accounting Act of 29 September 1994
(uniform text: Journal of Laws of 2002 No 76, with subsequent amendments) (hereinafter “the
Act™).

Based on the agreement concluded with the Management Board of the Parent Company, dated
November 4, 2005, we audited the consolidated financial statements for the 12 months period
ended December 31, 2005,

Our responsibility was to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements on the
basis of our audit. The auditing procedures were designed in such a way as to enable us to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Our procedures did not extend to supplementary information which does not have an impact on
the financial statements taken as a whole.

Based on our audit, we issued an auditors’ opinion dated March 1, 2006 which was as follows:

“To the Supervisory Board of Polish Energy Partners S.A.

We have audited the attached consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2005 of Polish Energy Partners (the “Group™) with its registered office located in
Warsaw, at ul. Wiertnicza 169, containing:

¢ the consclidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2005 with total assets amounting to 378,739

thousand zlotys,
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5.

the consolidated profit and loss account for the period from 1 January 2005 to 31 December
2005 with a net profit amounting to 9,341 thousand zlotys,

the consolidated statement of changes in sharcholders’ equity for the period from
1 January 2005 to 31 December 2005 with a net increase in shareholders’ equity amounting to
10,497 thousand zlotys,

the consolidated cash flow statement for the period from 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2005
with a net cash inflow amounting to 5,015 thousand zlotys and

the additional notes and explanations.

The truth and fairness' of the attached consolidated financial statements and the proper
maintenance of the accounting records are the responsibility of the holding company’s
Management Board. Our responsibility was to audit the attached consolidated financial
statements and to express an opinion whether, based on our audit, these consolidated financial
statements, in all material respects, present truly and fairly” the financial position and financial
results of the Group.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
following regulations being in force in Poland:

chapter 7 of the Accounting Act dated 29 September 1994 (the “Accounting Act”),
the auditing standards issued by the National Chamber of Auditors,

in order to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free of material misstatement. In particular, the audit included examining, to a large extent on a
test basis, documentation supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The audit also included assessing the accounting principles adopted and used by the
Group and significant estimates made by the Management of the holding company, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe our audit has
provided a reasonable basis to express our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole.

The consolidated financial statements for the prior financial year ended 31 December 2004
were subject to our audit and dated 24 February 2005 we issued on these consolidated financial
statements an unqualified opinion with emphasis of matter relating to the reversal of
impairment write-downs and refease of provisions as a result of the improvement of financial
situation of one of key customers of the Company.

In our opinion, the attached consolidated financial statements, in all material respects;

present truly and fairly all information material for the assessment of the resuits of the
Group’s operations for the period from 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2005, as well as its
financial position” as at 31 December 2005;

1
2

Translation of the following expression in Polish: “rzetelnosé, prawidlowosc i jasnosé”
Translation of the following expression in Polish: “rzetelne, prawidlowe i jasne”
3 Translation of the following expression in Polish: “sytuacja majqtkowa i finansowa”

This is a translation of the Long form auditors’ report originally issued in Polish.
6




Polish Energy Partners Capital Group
Long form auditors’ report supplementing the opinion
on the financial statemenis
Jor the vear ended December 31, 2005
(in thousands PLN)

[ ]

have been prepared appropriately in all material aspects with the provisions of the
International Financial Reporting Standards, which were adopted by the EU;

fulfils all the law requirements which impact the form and content of the financial statements.

We have read the Directors’ Report for the period from 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2005
discussing the Group activity and the principles of preparing vearly consolidated financial
statements (“Directors’ Report™) and conclude that the information derived from the attached
consolidated financial statements reconciles with the consolidated financial statements. The
information included in the Directors’ Report corresponds with the Regulation of Finance
Minister dated 19 October, 2005 in relation to current and periodical information submitted by
the issuers of securities (Journal of Laws no. 209 pos. 1744).

As at the date of the issuance of this opinion, the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December, 2004 have not been filed at the National Court Register and have not been
submitted for publication in Monitor Polski B, as required by the provisions of the Accounting
Act.

The audit of the consolidated financial statements was performed in the period from January
30, 2006 to March 1 2606 and in the parent Company from January 30, 2006 to March 1, 2006.
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3.2.

3.3.

Representations provided and availability of data

The Management Board of the Company confirmed its responsibility for the truth and fairness
of the consolidated financial statements and consolidation documentation. The Company’s
Management Board provided us with all financial statements of the Group companies included
in the consolidated financial statements consolidation documentation and other required
documents as well as all necessary explanations. We also obtained a written representation
from the Management Board of the Company, dated March 1, 2006 confirming:

» the complete disclosure of information in the consolidation documentation,

e the inclusion of all contingent liabilities in the consolidated financial statements,

e the disclosure in the consolidated financial statements of all material events from
the balance sheet date to the date of the representation,

The representation also confirmed that the information provided to us was true and fair to
the best of the Parent Company Management Board’s knowledge and belief, and that it
included all events that could have an effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Information on the Group’s prior year consolidated financial statements

The Group’s financial statements, prepared in accordance wit Polish Accounting Standards, for
the year ended December 31, 2004 were audited by Mr. Jarostaw Wajer certified auditor (no
10208/7529) acting on behalf of Ernst &Young audit Sp. z o0.0. with seat in Warsaw, Emilii
Plater 53, listed in audit firm register under no. 130. The certified auditor acting on behalf of
the audit firm issued to these financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 the
unqualified opinion with emphasis of matter relating to the release of the provisions and
impairment write ups as a result of improvement of one of the Group’s customers.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004, were
approved by the Shareholders at the General Shareholders Meeting on April 15, 2005.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 with the
auditors’ opinion, the excerpt from the resolution approving the consolidated financial
statements and the Group’s report on activities were filed in the National Court Register on
July 8, 2005.

Tifl March 1 2006, the introduction to the consolidated financial statements, the consolidated
balance sheet for the year ended December 31, 2004, consolidated profit and loss account,
consolidated changes in the equity, and consolidated cash flow for the year ended December
31, 2004 with the auditors’ opinion, the excerpt from the resolution approving the consolidated
financial statements, the excerpt from the resolution about profit distribution were not filed in
Monitor Polski B.

This is a translation of the Long form auditors’ report originally issued in Polish.
8




Polish Energy Partrers Capital Group
Long form auditors’ report supplementing the opinion
on the financial statements
Jor the year ended December 31, 2005
(in thousands PLN)

4.1.

FINANCIAL SITUATION

Basie data and financial ratios

Selected financial ratios which characterize financial situation of Polish Energy Partners
Capital Group in years 2004-2005 are presented below, the ratios were calculated on the basis
of the financial information included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

The financial ratios for the year 2003 were not presented because the Group changed its applied
accounting standards to the International financial Reporting Standards, which were adopted by
the UE in 2005 and these data for previous years is not available.

2005 2604
Total assets 378.739 340.277
Shareholders’ funds 111.621 101.124
Net profit/loss 9.341 6.653
Return on assets 2.6% 1,9%
Net profit
Total assets
Return on equity 8.8% 6.8%
Net profit
Sharcholders® funds at the beginning of the period
Net sales profitability 15,3% 13,3%
Net profit/ (loss)
Sales revenue from sales of finished goods and goods for
resale
Liquidity | 2,88 2,37
Current assets
Short-term liabilities+ Short-term accruals + Short-term
provisions
Liquidity 111 1,41 1,50

Trade securities + cash

Short-term liabilities
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2005 2004
Reccivable days 66 days 51 days
Trade receivables x 363
Sales revenue
Creditor days 35 days 42 days
Trade creditors X 365
Costs of goods for resale and raw materials sold + cost of
production of finished products sold
Inventory days 22 days 27 days
Inventory x 365
Cost of goods for resale and raw materials sold + cost of
production of finished products sold
Stability of financing 92.9% 89.9%
Shareholders® funds + provisions + long-term liabilities
Total liabilities and cquity
Debd ratio (%)
70,5% 70,3%
{Total liabilities and cquity — shareholders” funds) x 100
Total assets
Rate of inflation:
yearly average 2,1% 3,5%
December to December 0,7% 4.4%

4.2 Comments on changes in financial ratios

The analysis of the presented figures and ratios indicates the following trends in 2005:

In 2005 the efficiency ratios improved in comparison to the previous year which was caused by
the higher reported net profit for the current financial year in comparison to the net profit
reported by the Group in 2004.

The return on asset in 2005 were higher in comparison to 2004 by almost one percentage point
from 1.9% to 2.6%, and the return on equity increased by two percentage points from 6.8% to
8.8%. The net sales profitability increased in 2005 in relation to 2004 by two percentage points
from 13.3% to 15.3%.

The liquidity ratio I (current liquidity) increased from the level of 2.37 as of December 31,
2004 to the level of 2.88 as of December 31, 2005due to the increase of short term receivables
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4.3

by 20 million zlotys. The liquidity ratio I (cash liquidity) insignificantly decreased from the
level of 1.5 as of December 31, 2004 to the level of 1.41 as of December 31, 2005.

The receivables turnover decreased in comparison to previous year and amounts to 66 days.
The creditor days which amounted to 35 days in 2005 were lower by 7 days in comparison to
the year 2004.

The inventory turnover was shorter than in the previous year by 7 days and was at the level of
20 days due to increase in cost of goods sold in 2005 in comparison to the year 2004 while the
level of inventory was the same.

The stability of financing ratio and the debt ratio are generally at the same level in both
compared periods. The Group applies relatively high level of leverage however the main part of
liabilities is long term which positively impacts the debt ratio.

Going concern

Nothing came to our attention during the audit that would cause us to believe that the Company
is unable to continue as a going concern for the period of at least twelve months subsequent to
December 31, 2005 as a result of any intentional or compulsory discontinuing or significant
limitation in its activities.

In Note 2 in the explanatory notes to the audited Group financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2005 the Company’s Management Board stated that the financial
statements of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures included in the consolidated financial
statements were prepared on the basis that these companies will be going concerns for the
period of at least twelve months subsequent to December 31, 2005.

During the current financial year one of the subsidiaries Energopep Sp. z 0.0., Warszawa ul.
Wiertnicza 169 reported loss which increased the negative net assets value. As of December 31,
2005 the total capital of that company was negative and amounted to PLN 4,872 thousands.
Had the profitability of that company remained negative there would be a significant risk for
this company to operate as a going concern. We have received written representation from the
parent company being the limited partner supporting the company in the period of at least the
next 12 months. According to the Commercial Code limited partner is responsible for the
liabilities of the company up to the limitation sum which is PLN 50 thousand.
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3.1.

3.2,

SPECIFIC COMMENTS

COMPLETENESS AND ACCURACY OF CONSOLIDATION DOCUMENTATION

During the audit we have not noted any material irregularitics in the consolidation
documentation which were not subsequently corrected that could have a material effect on the
audited consolidated financial statements. These would include matters related to the
requirements applicable to the consolidation documentation (and in particular eliminations
refating to consolidation adjustments).

ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE VALUATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Group’s accounting policies and principles are detailed in Note 6 in the additional
explanatory notes to the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2003. In the audited financial year, based on the provisions of art. 55.6a of the
Accounting Act the Group changed the applied accounting standards to the International
Financial Reporting Standards, which were adopted by UE. The effects of the changes in the
accounting principles are presented in the additional explanatory note 7 to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005.

FEATURES OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The structure of the Group’s assets and equity and liabilities is presented in the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005.

The data disclosed in the consolidated financial statements reconcile with the consolidation
documentation.

Goodwill on consolidation and amortization

The principles applied to calculate goodwill the principles to assess impairment and the
impairment write downs for the financial year and till the balance sheet date are presented in
the Note 6 of the explanatory notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Shareholders’ funds

The amount of shareholders’ funds is consistent with the amount stated in the consolidation
documentation and appropriate legal documentation.

Information on shareholders’ funds has been presented in Note 24 of the additional explanatory
notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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3.3.

4.2,

Financial year

Financial statements of the Capital Group forming the basis for the consolidated financial
statements of entities included in the capital Group were prepared as of December 31, 2005 and
comprised the financial data for the period from January 1, 2005 to December 31, 2005.

CONSOLIDATION ADJUSTMENTS

Elimination of inter-company balances (debtors and creditors) and inter-company
transactions (revenues and expenses) of consolidated companies

All eliminations of inter-company balances (debtors and creditors) and inter-company
transactions (revenues and expenses) of the consolidated companies reconcile with the
consolidation documentation.

Elimination of unrealized gains/losses of the consolidated companies, included under
assets, as well as relating to dividends

All eliminations of unrealized gains/losses of the consolidated companies, included under
assets, as well as relating to dividends reconcile with the consolidation documentation

DISPOSAL OF ALL OR PART OF SHARES IN A SUBORDINATED ENTITY
During the financial year the Group did not sell any shares in subordinated entities.
ITEMS WHICH HAVE AN IMPACT ON THE GROUP’S RESULT FOR THE YEAR

Details of the items which have an impact on the Group’s result for the year have been
included in the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2005.
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7. REASONS FOR EXCLUSION FROM CONSOLIDATION AND APPLICATION OF
EQUITY ACCOUNTING METOHOD IN THE INTERNATIONAIL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS APPROVED BY EURPEAN UNION

During the process of preparation of the consolidated financial statements there were no
exclusions from the consolidation methods or application of the equity accounting that would
have resulted in the modifications in the auditors® opinion.

8. WORK OF THE EXPERT

During our audit we have taken into account the results of the work of the independent actuary
responsibie for the calculation of present value of liabilities towards employees other than

remuneration.

Certified Auditor on behalf of

No 10402/7665 Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z 0.0.,
Rondo ONZ 1, 00-124 Warszawa
Ident. no. 130

Muarcin Zielinski Artur Zwak
Certified Auditor
No 9894/7366

Warsaw, 1 March 2006
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